
15.0619.02000 

Amendment to : SB 2191 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/20/2015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
1 1 d · r r · td d ti eves an appropna 10ns an 1c1pa e un ercurren aw. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 

Expenditures $3,000 

Appropriations $3,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties $0 

Cities $0 

School Districts $0 

Townships $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

The administrative rules hearing , publication of the administrative rules hearing , and any fees incurred with the 
attorney general's office . 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

The administrative rules hearing , publication of the administrative rules hearing, and any fees incurred with the 
attorney general's office. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Currently, we can't determine revenues due to the fact that we won't know what the licensing fees are until we start 
to draft the administrative rules . We anticipate that licenses would be less than $300 dollars biannually. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The expenditures would be to offset the cost of the administrative rules hearing and any costs incurred with the 
attorney general's office. This is a relatively new small professions boards with different professions having different 
fees . We don't have enough reserves yet to potentially handle disciplinary actions across multiple professions. The 
board members are all uncompensated and the drafting , discussing , and voting upon rules takes many hours and 
many meetings. As more professions and licenses are regulated by the ND BIHC we will have to incur the cost of 
part-time help. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 

The appropriations funds would be to offset the cost of the administrative rules hearing and any costs incurred with 
the attorney general's office. This is a relatively new small professions boards with different professions having 
different fees. We don't have enough reserves yet to potentially handle disciplinary actions across multiple 
professions. The board members are all uncompensated and the drafting, discussing, and voting upon rules takes 
many hours and many meetings. 

Name: Lezlie Link 

Agency: ND Board of Integrative Health Care 

Telephone: 701 595 1595 

Date Prepared: 01/21/2015 



15.0619.01000 

Bill/Resolution No .: SB 2191 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0112012015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d 't' d d ti eves an appropna 10ns anticipate un ercurren aw. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 

Expenditures $3,000 

Appropriations $3,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties $0 

Cities $0 

School Districts $0 

Townships $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

The administrative rules hearing, publication of the administrative rules hearing , and any fees incurred with the 
attorney general's office. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

The administrative rules hearing , publication of the administrative rules hearing , and any fees incurred with the 
attorney general's office . 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

Currently, we can' t determine revenues due to the fact that we won't know what the licensing fees are until we start 
to draft the administrative rules. We anticipate that licenses would be less than $300 dollars biannually. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The expenditures would be to offset the cost of the administrative rules hearing and any costs incurred with the 
attorney general's office. This is a relatively new small professions boards with different professions having different 
fees . We don't have enough reserves yet to potentially handle disciplinary actions across multiple professions. The 
board members are all uncompensated and the drafting, discussing, and voting upon rules takes many hours and 
many meetings. As more professions and licenses are regulated by the ND BIHC we will have to incur the cost of 
part-time help. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 

The appropriations funds would be to offset the cost of the administrative rules hearing and any costs incurred with 
the attorney general's office. This is a relatively new small professions boards with different professions having 
different fees. We don't have enough reserves yet to potentially handle disciplinary actions across multiple 
professions. The board members are all uncompensated and the drafting, discussing, and voting upon rules takes 
many hours and many meetings. 

Name: Lezlie Link 

Agency: ND Board of Integrative Health Care 

Telephone: 701 595 1595 

Date Prepared: 01/21/2015 



2015 SENATE GOVERNMENT AND VETERANS AFFAIRS 

SB 2191 



2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
Missouri River Room, State Capitol 

SB 2191 
1 /23/2015 

Job# 22454 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature � 
Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 43-17-02 and chapter 43-61 
of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the regulation of acupuncturists; to amend and 
reenact sections 43-17-41, 43-57-01, 43-57-03, 43-57-06, 43-57-07, and 43-57-11 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to duties of acupuncturists and the board of integrative health 
care; and to provide a penalty. 

Minutes: ments 1-4 

Chairman Dever: Opened the hearing on SB 2191. 

Senator Unruh, District 33: Testified as sponsor of the bill. I will not try to explain to you what 
the bill does but there are many experts behind me that will do a much better job of giving you 
the details of it. 

(1 :33) Chairman Dever: Who will be doing the explanation? 

Senator Unruh: Blake Blowers will be. 

Chairman Dever: Have you experienced acupuncture? 

Senator Unruh: I have and I am a fan as well. I think it works. 

Senator Holmberg, District 17: Testified as a sponsor of the bill. I have put this bill in in the 
past and it has typically gone to Human Services and the Senate has passed an acupuncture 
bill in the past, but it typically ran into trouble because they did not have a state board to 
oversee the profession. Now I understand that there is a board and that goes a long way to 
take care of the concerns of the legislature in the past. 

(3: 40) Chairman Dever: I remember when you put the first bill in there was one acupuncturist 
in Fargo and one in Grand Forks. 

Senator Holmberg: Right. 
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(4: 35) Blake Blowers, Acupuncturist, Bismarck: See Attachment #1 for testimony in support 
of the bill and to explain the bill. 

(18: 25)Senator Cook: I am looking at Pg. 5 line 21, the bill makes the statement that 
therapies used by an acupuncturist are not exclusive privilege of an acupuncturists and their 
use by individuals not licensed to practice acupuncture is not prohibited. Then starting on line 
28 you say that an individual may not practice any form of acupuncture with a current 
acupuncture license. It seems to me you are saying two different things. 

Blake Blowers: My understanding of that is that we are saying that if someone else is 
licensed to practice acupuncture under their own board, that we are not taking these definitions 
to be exclusively ours if they are already allowed to use them. But, if they are not licensed 
under the chiropractic board, medical board, or the board of integrative health to do such 
therapies then that would be something that we would not to be taking place. 

Senator Cook: Do you think it is clear that is what you are trying to say? 

Blake Blowers: I do, according to the people who created this. 

Chairman Dever: The following sentence does not restrict or apply to any other professional 
license. It is kind of confusing. 

Senator Cook: I think there has to be some clarification to the statement on Subsection 1. 

Chairman Dever: If another professional is licensed under their own board to practice 
acupuncture, are they restricted by this from using the title of acupuncture? 

Blake Blowers: Yes that is what we are asking for. They would still be able to designate 
themselves with the standards. The only two titles that we are asking for is acupuncturist and 
the abbreviation of L.Ac., which stands for licensed acupuncturist. 

Chairman Dever: And the exclusive use of those terms? 

Blake Blowers: Correct. 

Senator Davison: I appreciate the thoroughness of your explanation. Could you give me the 
background of the Board of Integrative Healthcare? 

Blake Blowers: That board was formed last session. I do not have a better explanation behind 
that. 

Chairman Dever: The reason we created that was because there are some professions that 
there are only a few in the state so there would be a board to encompass them all. 

Senator Davison: Is acupuncture reimbursable by insurance companies? 

Blake Blowers: No, and that is not something we are looking for right now. 
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Senator Davison: Clarified that the wording was to clarify the levels of training between an 
acupuncturist and a licensed acupuncturist. 

Blake Blowers: I think that is a fair statement. The title should represent the education. 

Senator Nelson: On line 30, pg. 5, you have L.Ac., but when I look at attachment 2 and 4 of 
your testimony it is listed without the periods so, what is the legal abbreviation for a licensed 
acupuncturist? I think the periods are going to get forgotten 80% of the time, but if it is in code 
that is how it has to be. 

Blake Blowers: I don't have a good answer to that now. I have always referenced it with the 
periods but certainly that is something that we need to have clarified. 

Chairman Dever: Are there people practicing acupuncture in the state that would not qualify 
under this bill? 

Blake Blowers: Not to my knowledge. We know that this profession is growing and we are 
anticipating it happening in the future. 

Senator Flakoll: What are the penalties of practicing without a license, and what teeth are 
there if they call themselves an acupuncturist and they are not with the new law? 

Blake Blowers: As far as the penalties, it would be a Class B misdemeanor. I would assume 
that the route that we would take if it is reported or we discovered someone was doing that, it 
would be reported to the board of integrative health and from there it would be acted upon. As 
for using Licensed Acupuncturist, it is about being able be recognized with one single word. 

Senator Flakoll: With procedures, there is always the risk of something not going according to 
plans so what do you have as your requirement as far as insurance? 

Blake Blowers: The type of insurance that I carry, there is an insurance company that is just 
for acupuncturists. So the type of malpractice insurance that I have is $1 million and $3 million 
coverage. Part of what this bill would do for us as acupuncturists is make that type of 
coverage easier to access. They like to have their acupuncturists be licensed in order to get 
that insurance coverage. Generally they have met all of those other requirements and the risks 
have been minimized. I have opted to carry that insurance even though there is nothing in the 
state requiring it. They often put in addendums because we do not have a board. 

Chairman Dever: Is there a seat on the integrative healthcare board for an acupuncturist. 

Blake Blowers: Yes, they have anticipated that. 

Chairman Dever: Under what circumstances would someone seek out an acupuncturist? 

Blake Blowers: A lot of times it is word of mouth. Treatment is often sought for pain. 

Chairman Dever: Why the difference in training of a chiropractor that does acupuncture and 
someone with your training? 
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Blake Blowers: I think it varies among chiropractors. I know of some that take and try and 
practice acupuncture within the realm of Chinese medicine as we have been taught so they 
are taking into account a lot more than what I feel a 1 OOhr course would allow. But, a lot of 
times there are chiropractors that are doing it specifically as an adjunct to help work with 
muscle areas and enhance the treatments they are doing. I don't see them being any kind of 
danger we just want the differentiation to be clear in our level of training. 

Chairman Dever: The 100 hours that you reference is in addition to what chiropractors 
already have training otherwise to do? 

Blake Blowers: It would seem that way. They have a great background in all sorts of 
anatomy and physiology. The difference that has to be recognized is that the training in 
acupuncture theory is a completely different paradigm. There is a reason that we go to school 
for about 3 years to learn that and understand the entire process. 

(Discussion of difference between Chiropractors that do acupuncture and an Acupuncturist) 

(38: 05) See Attachments# 2 for additional testimony. 

(38:50)Stephanie Belohlavek-Geiger, Veteran, Mandan Resident: See Attachment #3 for 
testimony in support of the bill. 

(43: 35) Chairman Dever: What is the VA doing for you related to this acupuncture? 

Stephanie Belohlavek-Geiger: When I first went the VA for my RA I left with 6 different 
meds. When I went back the third time I had 17. My body can't take any more medication. 
When your only option is to take medicine and your body doesn't like it, there is little left. My 
choices were chiropractic care and acupuncture which of course I did not try until 4 years too 
late. You cannot repair damage that is already done. 

Chairman Dever: You work at Bismarck Vet center, is that the federal VA? 

Stephanie Belohlavek-Geiger: We are federal. Our program is called readjustment 
counseling services, so we fall under the umbrella of the VA, but we are not under health side 
of the VA. 

Chairman Dever: Pretty compelling testimony. 

Stephanie Belohlavek-Geiger: (Talked about initial experience at the acupuncturist again) 

Chairman Dever: What brought you to a decision to go to an acupuncturist? 

Stephanie Belohlavek-Geiger: The methotrexate was literally killing me. My liver was no 
longer functioning. The Mayo Clinic would not see me anymore because they could not agree 
with what was going on with me. The doctors here in Bismarck would not see me anymore. It 
was trial and error. I have a very good chiropractor that is also trained in acupuncture. His 
thought was that a trained acupuncturist would be the best option. 
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Chairman Dever: I could not feel it when I had it. 

Stephanie Belohlavek-Geiger: (talked more about experiences) 

Chairman Dever: The VA does not cover anything with acupuncture? 

Stephanie Belohlavek-Geiger: No they do not. 

(48:55) Lezlie Link, Doctor of Naturopathic Medicine: Attachment #4 in neutral position on 
the bill. 

Chairman Dever: So there is a slot designated on the board for acupuncturists or do we need 
to create one? 

Lezlie Link: How the board was created allows a group to petition. They gave us their bill 
before October so that we could meet and make a decision. We do not have control of who 
comes underneath the board. If this bill comes forward there would be a licensed 
acupuncturist joining the board. That way there would always be representation on that board 
for each individual profession. The statues in the bill for the creation of the integrative health 
care board allow for sub groups and sub committees if we needed one. To keep numbers odd 
for voting purposes, there can be a lay member of the community. All positions are appointed 
by the Governor and currently we have myself, as a doctor of naturopathic medicine, a 
registered pharmacist, and advanced practice nurse practitioner, and then we have a medical 
doctor. We do not have a public member quite yet. We license about 20 people currently. We 
would be looking at adding somewhere between 10 and 12 licenses. I was asked to do a fiscal 
note and I had no way of anticipating what revenues would be from licenses because that is 
something that we would decide during statues/ administrative rule. One of the problems is 
that when someone brings a bill and they come under our board, each new profession needs 
an administrative rules hearing. It is a cost issue with new licenses potentially every session to 
have a new professional group coming under this board and we would have to do another 
administrative rules hearing. We have to advertise in all the papers. I have to go to 
administrative rules hearing and testify etc. So it does a cost issue to repeat that process 
every time. That is the reason for the $3000 as an expenditure to the general budget. 

Chairman Dever: Is the structure of this bill consistent with the other professions? 

Lezlie Link: The only thing that is not consistent is when they would renew their licensing. 
understood that they would be in the even years and the other two in the board would be in the 
odd years and it would be nice if they would be licensed in the even years since we are such a 
small board. 

Chairman Dever: Closed the hearing on SB 2191. 
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Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
Missouri River Room, State Capitol 
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Job# 24114 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Minutes: Attachments 1 

Chairman Dever: Opened SB 2191 for committee discussion. 

Senator Flakoll: See Attachment #1 for proposed amendment. 

Committee Discussion: The committee reviewed their notes on the bill and discussed the 
abbreviated title of a licensed acupuncturist. They also wanted to make sure that it is not 
the same abbreviation of a Licensed Addiction Counselor. 

Senator Nelson: Moved Amendments proposed. (Attachment #1) 

Senator Poolman: Seconded. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 7 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. 

Motion Carried. 

Senator Cook: Moved to amend and remove line 23 after acupuncturist, through line 
24 to last word in the sentence. 

Senator Poolman: Seconded. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 7 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. 

Motion Carried. 

Senator Flakoll: Moved a Do Pass As Amended. 

Senator Davison: Seconded. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 7 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. 

Motion Carried. 

Senator Flakoll will carry the bill. 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SB 2191 

Page 5, line 30, replace "Acupuncturist" with "Licensed Acupuncturist" 

Page 5, line 30 replace "L.Ac." with "LAc" 

( 
'··. 

l __ 



15.0619.01001 
Title. 02000 

Adopted by the Government and Veterans 
Affairs Committee 

February 19, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2191 

Page 5, line 23, remove". and their use. practice. prescription. or administration by individuals 
not licensed" 

Page 5, line 24, remove "to practice acupuncture is not prohibited by this chapter" 

Page 5, line 30, after the first set of underscored quotation marks insert "Licensed" 

Page 5, line 30, replace "L.Ac." with "LAc" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0619.01001 
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D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

Other Actions: 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
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Senators Yes No Senators 
Chairman Dever ,/ Senator Marcellais 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
February 20, 2015 7:44am 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_34_007 
Carrier: Flakoll 

Insert LC: 15.0619.01001 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2191: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Sen. Dever, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2191 was placed 
on the Sixth order on the calendar. · 

Page 5, line 23, remove". and their use, practice, prescription. or administration by 
individuals not licensed" 

Page 5, line 24, remove "to practice acupuncture is not prohibited by this chapter" 

Page 5, line 30, after the first set of underscored quotation marks insert "Licensed" 

Page 5, line 30, replace "L.Ac." with "LAc" 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_34_007 



2015 HOUSE GOVERNMENT AND VETERANS AFFAIRS 

SB 2191 



2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 
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D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to duties of acupuncturists and the board of integrative health care; and to provide 
a penalty 

Minutes: II Attachments 1-4 

Chairman Kasper opened the hearing on SB 2191. 

Blake Blowers, Lobbyist for the ND Association of Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine, 
appeared in support. Attachment 1. (1 :28-13:50) Handed out some other written 
testimonies from Dr. Lezlie Link, Head of the Board of Integrative Health Care, and Adriane 
Maag, Masters of Science in Oriental Medicine, Diplomate of Acupuncture. Attachments 
2-3. 

Rep. Laning (15:56)How many members do you expect to have in your organization? 

Blake Blowers Right now we have 10. 

Rep. Laning How do you see your representation on the Integrative Health Care Board 
change? 

Blake Blowers Currently there are 5 members on that board. When they created that 
board, they anticipated an acupuncturist joining them. From our profession alone, there 
would be one, and then the other practitioners are a naturopathic doctor, a physician, a 
pharmacist, a nurse practitioner, and a music therapist. 

Rep. Laning You would be one of those 5? 

Blake Blowers One of the 6. 

Vice Chair Rohr On first page of your testimony, you have . . .  determine if an exam from 
another state or country is equivalent. How frequently would the other country be an 
issue? 



House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
SB 2191 
3/12/15 
Page 2 

Blake Blowers I don't anticipate that would be very likely. There are schools in China and 
throughout the world. It is possible that we could get somebody that would show up and 
have taken an exam like that. I would be confident that the organization like the NCCAOM 
would have some kind of reference for us to evaluate whether or not that test would be 
sufficient, and if we did not think it was, then, of course, they would be required to take the 
National Certification Commission's test. 

Vice Chair Rohr How many schools are there for acupuncture? 

Blake Blowers I don't know the exact number. I believe it is in the 30s across the United 
States. 

Vice Chair Rohr Would the physicians who do acupuncture as an adjunct to their practice 
be under this board? 

Blake Blowers They would be under their own board. 

Vice Chair Rohr I was looking at Minnesota's curriculum. Is this clinical practice under 
supervision, or do you go to another country? 

Blake Blowers That is all supervised from the very beginning. We start out by observing 
other students who are being supervised by a practitioner or teacher. As we progress 
throughout the program and have learned the appropriate skills to be able to provide a 
treatment, we are still supervised all the way until our graduation. 

Vice Chair Rohr Do you use acupuncture needles? 

Blake Blowers No, we do not. The standard of practice is a one-time use surgical grade 
stainless steel. 

Rep. B. Koppelman How are you going to police the industry? 

Blake Blowers There would not be a specific person who would go out and check the 
clinics to make sure that an acupuncturist is following the clean need technique or whatever 
might be listed there. The responsibility is to make sure that your practitioners understand 
the rules and regulations. Based off of that, they are held to that standard. If they are not 
doing that, we would assume it would eventually be reported by another practitioner who is 
seeking treatment or perhaps a patient. 

Rep. B. Koppelman Is there any initial setup when you start a practice? Does the Health 
Department come in and check things over? 

Blake Blowers I am not aware of anyone coming in and make sure, for example, 
hazardous waste containers are in place or something else along those lines. We would 
expect that they would have the credentials and full understanding of the standards. 

Rep. Steiner Are you touching a nerve to relieve pain when you insert a needle? 
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Blake Blowers We sometimes go into the body of the muscle or areas that have higher 
concentrations of nerve endings. The main idea behind acupuncture from a western 
perspective is to stimulate the central nervous system, and by doing that, we initiate a 
healing response. 

Rep. Steiner What would be the cost? How long is a treatment, and what is the cost? 

Blake Blowers That would vary among the acupuncturists. Some offer different options of 
treatment. For example, there is something called community action puncture, which there 
is not quite as much privacy with that. They can vary the rate from $25-$65 a treatment. 
Personally, an initial treatment with an exam is $83 and then each additional treatment is 
$53. 

Vice Chair Rohr Could you talk about referrals? 

Blake Blowers Referrals from both sides are absolutely part of what we work with. 

Vice Chair Rohr Is there any other diagnostic equipment or ancillary services in your 
clinic? 

Blake Blowers Not as far as I know of. 

Rep. Amerman Would you explain what adjunctive therapy is. 

Blake Blowers Adjunctive therapy is something that they would be doing to help support 
their primary type of therapy. For example, a chiropractor who is going to be giving a 
chiropractic adjustment and the muscles in a specific area were really tight, so maybe they 
would put a couple acupuncture needles into that muscle to help loosen that and then be 
able to provide a better adjustment. 

Rep. Amerman Page 5, Line 26 states that effective January 1, 2016, an individual may 
not practice any form of acupuncture without a current acupuncture license issued by the 
board. Your chiropractor that sticks a couple of needles couldn't practice unless he 
received a license? 

Blake Blowers Page 5, Line 20 is the exemption for that. As long as they are performing 
acupuncture under the scope of their board, then we have no regulation over that. 

Rep. Seibel Are your services currently reimbursable through medical insurance? 

Blake Blowers No, they are not. 

Rep. Mooney How much are the dues for your board? 

Blake Blowers Those have not been established yet, and those would happen during the 
administrative hearings of the board. There is a budget of $3,000. The way that we would 
determine what the dues would be would be based on evaluation of surrounding states and 
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what they are doing and take into account what our costs are and come up with something 
reasonable. 

Rep. Mooney Do you have any sense of how many acupuncturists might be interested? 

Blake Blowers Currently there are definitely 1 O in the state. 

Vice Chair Rohr You also indicated some programs are Doctorate prepared. Why if your 
credentials are LAC, why aren't you indicating that you have a master's or a PhD? 

Blake Blowers It is fairly common for an acupuncturist to list MS after their name. We are 
trying to go for some kind of unified title. 

Rep. Mooney Do South Dakota and Montana recognize acupuncturists? 

Blake Blowers South Dakota does not. Montana has one of the best regulations, one that 
requires the most out of an acupuncturist. 

Rep. Mooney Does that allow for reciprocity? If you had someone from Montana who 
wanted to come and practice in North Dakota? 

Blake Blowers They would still have to be licensed in North Dakota once our board is 
established. 

Rep. M. Johnson Explain the chart that shows no for certification for Montana. 

Blake Blowers It says no for the certification, but they still require a couple of other 
categories. As far as the acupuncture part of things are concerned, there are three main 
tests--point location, theory of acupuncture, and acupuncture treatment strategy. We would 
be in line with that. 

Rep. M. Johnson What do those categories mean? 

Blake Blowers Practice acupuncture are those that have a board or licensure. FOMM is 
fundamentals of the medicine. They are asking you a question as far as a specific health 
concern and how you would treat it. 

Rep. M. Johnson If they don't require certification, who is asking the question? 

Blake Blowers I need to get you the definition on that certification required. Every one of 
these is one of the tests from the National Certification Commission. Some of those others 
could be classified as a certificate, and that is what I believe they are talking about here. I 
will find out for you, though. 

Rep. M. Johnson The state might require you to have certain proficiency without 
certification in some things? 
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Blake Blowers If they are going to be doing acupuncture, they will have to have passed 
the college or university in order to do that. In order to set for the national certification, they 
would have to be able to show that they passed one of those programs. Certification is 
something different than what this is talking about. I can get you the information to clear 
that up. 

Rep. Louser If you get licensed under a board, is it your intent to seek reimbursement from 
health insurance providers? 

Blake Blowers As far as I am aware, it is not our intention to try and go for the next step, to 
try and go for insurance. Our primary objective right now is to get something in place, for 
licensure so we can call ourselves something, and it is going to be public protection. 

Chairman Kasper Page 6, Line 25-26, are you imposing a residency requirement to be an 
acupuncturist in North Dakota? 

Blake Blowers It wouldn't allow for a grandfather situation. Everyone who is here right 
now that is part of our association that wants this to go through is already a resident. 

Chairman Kasper That is then imposing some type of a residency requirement to be 
licensed, or is it the other way around? 

Blake Blowers I believe that if somebody wants to be licensed under board and say they 
currently live in Florida and just want a license in North Dakota, they would be allowed to 
apply for licensure. 

Chairman Kasper Subject to meeting the requirements of the bill? 

Blake Blowers Yes. 

Chairman Kasper Page 3, what are you thinking about fees? 

Blake Blowers It would be similar to our surrounding states, Minnesota and Montana. It 
would be somewhere in the range of $100-$400 either a year or every two years. The 
highest I have seen is close to $500 a year. Colorado has $200 every two years. Montana 
was $100 every other year. 

Chairman Kasper With the small number of potential members you have right now, you 
are not going to be generating a lot of revenue. Has that been a discussion with your folks 
about setting up the board and charging huge fees in order to have money to function as a 
board? 

Blake Blowers I have not had that discussion. I am not sure if it would be a collective fee 
or amongst everyone who is part of the board or specific for each group. I will find that out 
for you. 
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Stephanie Belohlavek-Geiger, Mandan resident and Readjustment Counselor, Bismarck 
Vet Center, appeared. Attachment 4. (47:30-52:22) 

Rep. Louser How often do you go for treatment? 

Stephanie Belohlavek-Geiger It is almost immediate relief. 

Rep. Louser Is it periodic? Is it scheduled? How do you seek treatment? I am comparing 
it to medication. 

Stephanie Belohlavek-Geiger There is no descriptive to the medication compared to the 
acupuncture. The acupuncture is as needed. 

Chairman Kasper Is there a maintenance program like a chiropractor? Are you able to 
have the relief you have with just one treatment? 

Stephanie Belohlavek-Geiger When I first started seeing Blake, he thought he would 
need to see me 3 times a week at least for a couple weeks. Within the first week, I only 
saw him twice. I saw him twice the next week and then we went down to once a week. I 
don't know if I am the norm or not. I just know how it affected me. 

No opposition. 

The hearing was closed. 

Rep. Amerman made a motion for a DO PASS. 

Vice Chair Rohr seconded the motion. 

Rep. B. Koppelman I can follow up on this for my own sake. I wonder if the initial set up 
would fall under the Health Department's purview. 

Chairman Kasper When you get to a point of a board, you want to know the physical setup 
where the acupuncturists are practicing to be sure it is appropriate. That would be the 
board's responsibility. 

Rep. Mooney I don't know if the lack of the designation of the application fee is going to be 
problematic going forward or not, but just as a point of reference. 

Chairman Kasper I agree. Being it is set up new and because it is such a small number in 
the state, they have to be careful when they set their fees. 

A roll call vote was taken. 14 Yeas, 0 Nays, 0 Absent. 

Vice Chair Rohr will carry the bill. 
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SB 2191 Acupuncture licensing bill 
Blake Blowers, NDAAOM Lobbyist 
Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee Hearing 
January 23, 2015 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Government and Veterans Affairs Committee, 

JI- I 
f� ' 

My name is Blake Blowers. I'm an acupuncturist in Bismarck. I'm registered as lobbyist #167 for the 
North Dakota Association of Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine. Senate Bill 2191 has been 
introduced on our behalf, and I have been asked to explain the bill. 

Senate Bill 2191 is a licensing bill for acupuncturists. The four main objectives of this bill are to 
establish licensing requirements, define a scope of practice, create titles, and establish regulation under 
the board of Integrative Health Care. 

Section 1 (page 1) 

The change proposed in this section exempts acupuncturists from NDCC chapter 43-17 which regulates 
Physicians. An exception is necessary to create a new section of code specific to acupuncturists. 

Section 2 (page 1) 

This section creates an amendment to the Physicians chapter. It defmes that acupuncturists must 
comply with reporting requirements when a patients trauma appears to be from a violent crime, 
possible violation of criminal law in this state. If a report is made concerning a victim of domestic 
violence, or sexual assault, the individual must be provided with referral information and reported to 
proper agencies in their county. 

Section 3 (page 2) 

Section 3 places licensed acupuncturists under the regulation of the Board of Integrative Health Care. 
The board of Integrative Health Care has anticipated acupuncturists joining them since the creation of 
the board in the 2011 legislative session. It also defmes that the use of the word "Board" from this point 
forward will imply the Board of Integrative Health Care, unless stated otherwise. 

Section 4 (pages 2-3) 

This section outlines the powers and duties of the board - such as establishing a scope of practice for 
acupuncturists, determining if an exam from another state or country is equivalent for reciprocity, 
establishing educational standards, and setting fees. They also will produce a list of all licensed 
individuals and make it available upon request. 

The board will also establish continuing education requirements and set requirements to allow 
supervised student practice. 

Section 5 (page 3) 
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States that the board shall issue a license to an applicant who fulfills the qualifications listed within the 
chapter regulating acupuncturists. 

Section 6 (pages 3-4) 

Deals with license renewal and continuing education. It indicates that the 2 year renewal cycle for 
acupuncturists begins and ends on different dates than naturopaths and music therapists - to spread out 
the license renewals for this multidisciplinary board. It also describes the conditions of renewal based 
on payment and continuing education requirements being met. 

It also describes what actions will take place if requirements are not met, and it provides an exception 
to anyone who doesn't meet the deadline for application due to a hardship. 

Section 7 (page 4) 

This section clarifies that it is a class B misdemeanor if someone violates the chapters pertaining to 
Acupuncturists, the board of Integrated Health Care, Naturopaths, or Music Therapists. 

Section 8 (page4-5) 

Begins the creation of the chapter for acupuncturists. 

Page 5 (line 1) defines acupuncture and provides a list of therapies that would be considered the 
practice of acupuncture. The therapies listed would be used as they are taught within an approved 
acupuncture program. 

Page 5 (line 7) states that an acupuncturist is a person who has been granted licensure by the board of 
Integrative Health Care. 

Page 5 (line 9) Is one of the most important parts of this bill, as it establishes the level of training 
expected of an individual who applies for an acupuncture license under the board of Integrative Health 
Care. 

This requirement separates acupuncture specialists from practitioners who simply use acupuncture as 
an adjunct therapy. Currently, there are a two different ways a person can complete acupuncture 
training. 

To be licensed as a specialist under this law, applicants must have graduated from a graduate level 
program at a college or university, which prepares the practitioner with 2300 to 2500 hours of course 
work and supervised clinical training in acupuncture. This is the level of training completed by the 
members of our Association. 

The other route is to take a several weekend course in acupuncture that provides 100 to 300 hours of 
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trammg. Typically, the practitioners who go this route are specialists in another area of health care such 
as allopathic medicine (MD/DO) or chiropractic. These individuals would not be licensed under this 
law, they have requirements they have to meet under their own licensing laws. 

The training for an acupuncturist from an institution as it is required in this section, would provide 
approximately 24 times more training than that of the most basic acupuncture course required of other 
professionals. It would also require that each applicant has graduated from a nationally accredited 
Master's or Doctoral degree program, which would be a 2.5 to 4 year program. 

Part a. and b. of this section relate to accreditation of a school. The school will be recognized by the 
US Department of Education as an accredited institution of higher learning and will also have its 
acupuncture program specially accredited. 

The national accreditation agency for acupuncture is the Accreditation Committee for Acupuncture and 
Oriental Medicine. They are recognized by the U.S. Department of Education as a "specialized and 
professional" accrediting agency with the primary purpose being to establish comprehensive 
educational and institutional requirements for acupuncture and Oriental medicine programs, and to 
accredit programs and institutions that meet these requirements. All of the reputable colleges and 
universities in the U.S. are either fully accredited or have candidacy for accreditation from this 
organization. 

Page 5 (line 20) Is an exemption that states some of the therapies listed in the defmition of acupuncture 
are not the exclusive privilege of acupuncturists and their use by any individual who is allowed to 
legally do so in this state, by their board, is not being prohibited by this chapter. This is an important 
provision, since it clearly indicates it will not affect those who are already practicing acupuncture under 
the scope of their own license, such as chiropractors and medical doctors. 

Page 5 (Line 27) Chapter 43-61-03 is the beginning of the title creation relating to acupuncture and 
establishes a date the title will go into effect. 

This chapter states that an individual may not practice any form of acupuncture without a license issued 
by the board. It also states that the titles "Acupuncturist" and "L. Ac." will be the title given to those 
who are licensed as acupuncturists by the board of Integrative Health Care, and anyone who is not 
licensed by the board and uses those terms or initials as identification without being licensed is 
engaging in the practice of acupuncture without a license. 

Title creation is important because of the tremendous difference in education between those who have 
completed graduate level acupuncture training from an accredited university or college, and other 
professionals who provide acupuncture as an adjunct therapy. 

Page 6 

(Line 3) 43-61-04 requires anyone wishing to practice acupuncture, use the title acupuncturist or the 
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abbreviation "L. Ac." to follow the board of Integrative Health Care approved application process. 

(Line 7) 43-61-05 defines the terms and conditions required of an applicant for licensure. An applicant 
must be of good moral character, meet the education and testing requirements, and submit all the 
documents for application set forth by the board of Integrative Health Care. 

Part a. requires the completion of a graduate level acupuncture program and would generally contain 
courses such as those listed in attachment # 1. 

Part b. ensures the applicant has successfully completed the board exams offered by the NCCAOM 
acupuncture board exam as outlined in attachment #3. 

We're emphasizing the NCCAOM boards because a significant amount of education in acupuncture 
training is required to even qualify for these board exams. The NCCAOM is also our national 
certification agency and by requiring NCCAOM involvement, the licensee must stay current with the 
NCCAOM standards of meeting or exceeding continuing education and CPR requirements. 

This section also requires a person have the physical, mental and professional capability to practice 
acupuncture and a history free of anything that would constitute grounds for disciplinary action by the 
board. 

Page 6 (Line 25) 43-61-06 creates a narrow exception clause to consider licensure based on the 
education and experience for a few practitioners in our state who took a national acupuncture exam 
before the current NCCAOM certification standards were established. This is not a grandfather clause. 

Page 7 (Line 4) 43-61-07 gives the board the ability to grant licensing reciprocity to an individual who 
is licensed in another state, if their test requirement is the same as North Dakota's. The individual 
would also have to meet all other requirements of the board for licensure. 

Page 7 (Line 17) 43-61-08 Defines the practice of acupuncture in te1ms of what can and cannot be done 
by an acupuncturist. 

Part 1, subcategories a. and b. states that acupuncturists will not prescribe or administer any therapy 
that is not part of the practice of acupuncture. 

Part 2, subcategories a. and b. Identifies patient education, botanical medicine, acupuncture, and 
several other techniques, which are commonly taught at the graduate level to be the therapies an 
acupuncturist can use as part of an acupuncture treatment. 
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(Line 1) 43-61-09 states that an acupuncturist has the same duties as a licensed physician with regard to 
public health when it comes to reporting within the limits of their scope of practice. 

(Line 6) 43-61-10 allows for the employment of an acupuncturist by a hospital. 



• 

• 

• 

List of attachments - SB 2191 - Acupuncture Licensing Bill 

Blake Blower's Attachments 

1. A typical accredited Acupuncture/Oriental Medicine master's degree curriculum. 3, 180 

hours. 4 years. http://www.aaaom.edu/programstmasters degree.html 

2. A typical Chiropractic Acupuncture Certificate program curriculum - 105 hours. 7 

weekends. http://www.nwhealth.edu/conted/seminars/acucert2.html 

3. NCCAOM's eligibility requirements to sit for the national boards. 

http://www.nccaom.org/applicants/eligibility-reQuirements 

4. CCAOM's comparison chart of acupuncture education programs. 

http://www.ccaom.org/downloads/KnowYourAcupuncturist.pdf 

5. CCAOM's Clean Needle Technique Course Overview . 

http://www.ccaom.org/cntprogram.asp 
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EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS 
Master's Degree Program 

The total master's degree program curriculum of 
31 80 hours ( 1 82 credits) includes 1 740 hours of 
didactic instruction on acupuncture and Oriental 
medicine, 540 hours of bioscience-related 
material, and 900 hours of clin ical observation 
and experience. The full-time program is 
designed to run twelve total trimesters, with fifteen 
weeks per trimester. The maximum time for 
program completion is eight years, taking eight 

credits per trimester minimum. It is also possible to accelerate through the 
program and complete it in nine trimesters. 

Courses marked with an asterisk (*) are electives. 
CLICK HERE FOR A LIST OF COURSE DESCRIPTIONS. 

CLICK HERE FOR A LIST OF COURSE TEXTBOOKS. 

First Year 
First Trimester 
Course # Course Title 
1 1 01 TCM Theory 
1 1 02 Meridians 
1 1 03 TCM & Chinese Culture 
1 1 04 Anatomy & Physiology I 
1 1 05 Western Medical Terminology 
1 1 06 Surface Anatomy 
1 1 07 Tai Chi 
1 1 08 Clinical Observation I 

Total 

Second Trimester 
Course # Course Title 
1 201 TCM Diagnostics I 
1 202 Point Location I 
1 203 TCM Pathology 
1 204 Anatomy & Physiology I I  
1 205 Microbiology 
1 206 TCM Dietary Therapy I 
1 207 Healing Qi Gong 
1 208 Clinic Observation I I  

Total 

Third Trimester 
Course # Course Title 
1 301 TCM Diagnostics I I  
1 302 Point Location I I  
1 303 Clinical Chinese Herbology I 
1 304 Anatomy & Physiology I l l  
1 305 TCM Dietary Therapy I I  
1 306 Clinic Observation I l l  

Total 

Second Year 
First Trimester 
Course # Course Title 
2 1 01 TCM Diagnostics I l l  
2 1 02 Acupuncture Prescriptions 
2 1 03 Clinical Chinese Herbology II 
2 1 04 Western Medical Pathology I 
2 1 05 Medical Chinese* 
2 1 06 Clinic Observation IV 

Total 

Second Trimester 
Course # Course Title 

Hours 
60 
30 
30 
30 
30 
30 
30 
30 
270 

Hours 
30 
60 
30 
30 
30 
30 
30 
30 
270 

Hours 
30 
60 
60 
60 
30 
30 
270 

Hours 
60 
60 
60 
30 
30 
30 
240 

Credits 
4 
2 
2 
2 
2 
2 
2 
1 
1 7  

Credits 
2 
4 
2 
2 
2 
2 
2 
1 
1 7  

Credits 
2 
4 
4 
4 
2 
1 
1 7  

Credits 
4 
4 
4 
2 
2 
1 
1 5  

Hours/Week 
4 
2 
2 
2 
2 
2 
2 
2 
1 8  

Hours/Week 
2 
4 
2 
2 
2 
2 
2 
2 
1 8  

Hours/Week 
2 
4 
4 
4 
2 
2 
1 8  

Hours/Week 
4 
4 
4 
2 
2 
2 
1 6  

Hours Credits Hours/Week 
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2201 OSHA/CNT 1 5  1 1 '/�3 SB ;l.l°r t 
2202 Acupuncture Techniques 60 4 4 -:!:\:. \ Fj'h' 2203 Clinical Chinese Herbology I ll 60 4 4 

. 2204 CPR/F.A. 1 5  1 1 
2205 Western Medicine Pathology I I  30 2 2 
2206 Clinic Observation V 30 1 2 

Total 2 1 0  1 3  1 4  

Third Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/\/Veek 
2301 TCM Treatment Principles 30 2 2 
2302 Auricular Acupuncture 30 2 2 
2303 Chinese Herbal Formulas I 60 4 4 
2304 Western Physical Assessment 60 4 4 
2305 Medical Tuina 30 2 2 
2306 Clinic Observation VI 30 1 2 

Total 240 1 5  1 6  

Third Year 
First Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/\/Veek 
3101  TCM Internal Medicine I 60 4 4 
3102 TCM Neurology 30 2 2 
3 1 03 Chinese Herbal Formulas I I  60 4 4 
3104 Western Internal Medicine 60 4 4 
3 1 05 Adv. Acupuncture Techniques• 30 2 2 
3 1 06 Clinical Practice I 1 20 4 8 

Total 330 1 8  22 

Second Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/Week 
3201 TCM Internal Medicine I I  60 4 4 
3202 Musculo-Skeletal Disorders 30 2 2 

in TCM 
3203 Chinese Herbal Formulas I l l  60 4 4 
3204 Pediatric Tuina 30 2 2 
3205 Scalp & Hand Acupuncture 30 2 2 
3206 Clinical Practice II  1 20 4 8 

Total 330 1 8  22 

Third Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/Week 
3301 TCM Dermatology 30 2 2 
3302 Chinese Patent Medicine 30 2 2 
3303 Survey of Health Care System 30 2 2 
3304 Lab Data Reading 30 2 2 
3305 Yellow Emperor's Classic 30 2 2 

of Med* 
3306 Clinical Practice I l l  1 20 4 8 

Total 240 1 2  1 6  

Fourth Year 
First Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/Week 
4101 TCM Gynecology/Obstetrics 60 4 4 
4 1 02 Febrile Diseases 30 2 2 
4 1 03 Western Gynecology/Pediatrics 30 2 2 
4 1 04 TCM Geriatrics 30 2 2 
4105 Board Review 30 2 2 
4 1 06 Clinical Practice IV 1 20 4 8 

Total 270 1 4  1 8  

Second Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/Week 
4201 TCM Psychology 30 2 2 
4202 Western Pharmacology 30 2 2 
4203 Medical Referral 30 2 2 
4204 TCM Counseling 30 2 2 
4205 Adv. Herbal Prescriptions• 30 2 2 
4206 Clinical Practice V 1 20 4 8 

Total 240 1 2  1 6  

Third Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/Week 
4301 TCM Cases Studies 30 2 2 
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4302 TCM Pediatrics 30 2 2 'J� 4303 Practice Management 30 2 2 
4364 Ethics, Legal & Professional 30 2 2 

Issues 
4305 Sensory Organ Disorders 30 2 2 

in TCM* 
4306 Clinical Practice VI 1 20 4 8 

Total 240 1 2  1 6  

I n  order to complete the program, 1 80 hours of clinical observation are 
required during the first six trimesters, and 720 hours of clinical practice are 
required during the remaining six trimesters, during which students must 
complete at least 360 treatment sessions including at least 72 new patients. 

ABOUT AAAOM I EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS I ADMISSIONS f FINANCIAL AID f FACULTY f CLINICS 
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Northwestem Chiropractic Acupuncture Certificate 
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TUITION 

(J) 
$1620 Full Program 

Discount (save $270) 
or $270 per session 

LOCATION 
On campus 

Ciiek Icon for 
directions 

CE HOURS 
105 Full Program 

15 Per Session 

TIMES 
Sat 9am -6pm 
Sun 8am-4pm 

(1 hr lunch on your 
own each day) 

This course is taught by a chiropractor and licensed acupuncturist specifically to fit the needs of 
chiropractors. Both theoretical and practical clinical skills will be taught, giving you techniques to 
help you treat even the most difficult musculoskeletal problems. The information presented will 
also help prepare you for the National Board of Chirooractic Examiners CNCBE) acupuncture exam 
which is required in some states for chiropractors to practice acupuncture. 

About the Instructor 

Peter Lichtenstein, DC, CCSP, LAc - email link 

1992 graduate of Northwestern College of Chiropractic. 
Practicing chiropractor and holds a dlplomate (NCCAOM) In acupuncture. 
Owns New Paltz Acupuncture and Chiropractic Clin ic In upstate New York where he 
blends Eastern-style health care with traditional chiropractic. 
He Is past-president of the Acupuncture Society of New York. 
Certified Chiropractic Sports Physician. 
Post-graduate faculty at Northwestern Health Sciences University since 2003. 

[:!:JI Dates llcourse Description 

CJ 
Sept. 20- Theory: What is Yin and What is Yang? Clean Needle Technique 
21, 2014 Clinical Portion: Introduction to Needling, Elementary point location. Palpation of the 

Abdomen and Treatment of the Immune System. 

Oct. 25- Theory: Five Element Theory and the Vital Substances 
26, 2014 Clinical Portion: Ancillary techniques Including cupping, bleeding, pediatrics, 

moxlbustlon, Gua Sha, Treatment of the Low Back via Abdominal Palpation 

13l Nov. 22-LJ 23, 2014 

14l Dec. 13-LJ 14, 2014 

[J Jan.31-
Feb. 1, 
2015 

161 Feb. 21-LJ 22, 2015 

March 
14-15, 
2015 

Theory: The Transformation of Qi & Functions of the Organs 
Clinical Portion: Introduction to Japanese acupuncture. Akabane diagnosis, Polarity 
and the use of Magnets and Ion Pumping Cords. Treating the Neck and the Shoulder. 

Theory: Causes of Disease and Beginning Pattern Identification 
Clinical Portion: Treatment of Structural Problems In the Scapula and Hips Region. 
Cervical Pain, Headaches and the treatment of Inflammation with Metal and Water 
Points 

Theory: Functions of the Lung, Spleen and Heart. Tongue and Pulse. 
Clinical Portion: Lower Extremity, Using the Extra Vessels Treatment of scars and 
trigger point needling techniques. 

Theory: Functions of the Kidney and the Liver. Auricular Acupuncture and treating 
ddictions. 

Clinical Portion: Auricular Acupuncture, the upper extremity 

Theory: Putting it all together, using the diagnosis forms 
Clinical Portion: Sciatica using Pachl Pachl. Clinical Quiz. 

***Schedule is subject to change without notice*** 

Required Text - Included in Tuition: 

• Medjcal Asepsjs for Acypyncturjsts (Safety Course Handout}, by John Pirog 

SITE MAP 
1:WJ! 

~=t;;:-:::: ~
1

~
1

~ ~~~v;,'~ J~'i~·~~"teb /semi nMs/o_ ~oca_rfl.Li+~I 



HOME 

FORMS 

FIND A 

PRACTITIONER 

APPLICANTS 

DIPLOMA TES 

CONSUMERS 

PDA PROGRAM 

REGULATORY 

AFFAIRS 

NEWS AND EVENTS 

ABOUT US 

CONTACT US 

• 
. , 

' Fro•n the Ci:'() 'f, Des<>> 

• 

'lc?.3 ~ l ~ l'log in ''> 

Siti:' rvbn ,,.,. 

Eligibility Requirements 
tiJU!lJ:. > > ~ > > Ellgibility Requirements 

All NCCAOM Certification applicants must meet specific training requirements prior to sitting for the 
examinations . 

Search>> 

Eligibility requirements to become authorized to test and certification requirements which must be 

fulfilled before certification can be awarded are two different elements in the certification process . 

Examination Eligibility Requirements (U.S. Education) T (Click to Read} 
1--····--·-············---· .. ·····-.. ·----·-·--"·------.. - ................. - .............. - ............. .. 

Pre-graduation Hour Requirements 

ACAOM Graduation How Requirement 

. 
' t,, '1. . . . i' . 



Once your application is a pproved and you have been issued an Authorization to Test letter, you will 

not be req uired to meet any new eligibility req uirements that may have been adopted since your 

application was received. 
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Council of Colleges of 
Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine 

Know Your A cup uncturi'st 
Practitioners whose graduate education is in Acupuncture & Oriental Medicine (AOM) 
receive approximately 80% of their education exclusively in this field and undergo 

extensive clinical training averaging 3-4 years. Other healthcare practitioners may only 
use acupuncture, which is one of the many therapies of Oriental Medicine, as a technique 
in their primary practice. 

A philosophical distinction of Oriental Medicine is its whole person approach of mind, 
body, and spirit in a comprehensive energetic healthcare system that includes acupuncture, 
herbs, Asian bodywork (e.g. acupressure, tui na, shiatsu), nutrition, tai chi, qi gong, and 

meditation. 

This chart is designed to illustrate the varying levels of education undertaken by healthcare 
professionals in acupuncture only and not in related curriculum, such as in the biosciences. 
Acupuncture should only be administered by a practitioner who has specific education in 
this field due to risk of improper needling, inadequate understanding of Oriencal medical 
diagnostic procedures, transmission of disease, imbalancing of energy, or ethical violations. 
Ask your practitioner about his or her education in order to ensure that you receive the 
most professional acupuncture care available for your optimal health and wellness. 

Cm,tfad flours t·n 
At:u;mndurc: tdtUat/(m. 

3-4 years Typically a Licensed Acupuncturist (LAc)** who has 

(1500 - 2000 hours in obtained a degree/diploma from an ACAOM-accredited 

acupuncture)* college and has passed the national certification exams 
administered by the NCCAOM.*** 

300 hours or less Typically a medical doctor, osteopath, naturopath, or 

in acupuncture chiropractor who uses acupuncture as an adjunctive 

technique. The World Health Organization recommends 
that medical doctors have a minimum of 200 hours of 

training to know when to refer to a more fully-trained 

Acupuncturist or Oriental Medicine practitioner. 

I 00 hours or less Typically a detox/auricular acupuncture technician or 

in acupuncture chiropractor (detox techs are generally limited to 5 points 
on the ear) 

www.ccaom.org 

A broad range of health 
issues, including chronic 
disease, pain, internal 
medicine, rehabilitation, 
and prevention 

Pain , basic ailments 

Addiction & pain 

• ACAOM's total curriculum requirement for an acupuncrure-only training program is 1905 hours and ranges bcrween 1950-2600 hours for ACAOM-accredired and 
candidate acupuncrure only training programs, wirh a minimum of 450 hours in the biomedical clinical sciences. 

*"Some scares also designate rhe licensing tide (non-degree) as DOM or DAc, or Acupuncture Physician. Licensed Acupuncturists may have also obtained an OMD, 
PhD, or DAc for non-extensive post-graduate training. Thus, ir is important ro a.<k where such a tide was received . 

•"ACAOM (Accreditation Commission fur Acupuncrurc & Oriental Medicine, www.acaom.org); NCCAOM (National Commission fur rhe Certification of 
Acupuncture & Oriental Medicine, www.nccaom.org) 

Produced by the Council of Colleges of Acupuncture & Orient.al Medicine (CCAOMj. For reprint information contact 301 -476-?790 or 

executivedirector@ccaom.org. For information about the Council please see our web .site at www.ccaom.org 

i I 
I, 
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Clean Needle Technique Course 

Overview 

Dear CNT Applicant, 

SB 
,;;:; 1'1 ' 

# I P5 1"-\ 

Thank you for your interest in the Clean Needle Technique (CNT) course, administered by the Council of Colleges of Acupuncture 
and Oriental Medicine (CCAOM). Successful completion of the CNT course is one of the requirements for National Certification 
Commission for Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine (NCCAOM) certification, as well as a licensing requirement in most states. 

Please note that the CCAOM CNT course is intended only for currently enrolled acupuncture students, persons currently enrolled in a 
state or NCCAOM approved tutorial program, persons who have graduated from an acupuncture and/or Oriental medicine program or 
school, licensed health care professionals legally able to practice acupuncture in the United States, or NADA detoxification 
specialists. In order to take the CCAOM CNT course, you must meet one of the eligibility criteria listed on page 2 of the application 
form. 

The CNT course contains several components: 

I . an orientation 
2. detailed instruction on the theories, concepts and application of clean needle technique as described in the Clean Needle 

Technique Manual 
3. a demonstration of the practical application ofCNT 
4. a written exam 
5. a training session where each applicant can practice and 

perfect the utilization and employment of CNT 
6. a practical exam 

Each CNT course begins at 8:30 am and ends no later than 5:00 pm. Although the course may end before 5:00 pm, we cannot 
guarantee it. If you have any questions after reading the enclosed material, please call the CCAOM office at 410-464-6040, or email 
your questions to: ccaomcm@comcast.net. 

Applications can be sent by mail, by fax, or by e-mail (if sent by e-mail, please scan the application and send as an attachment so that 
signatures are visible) to: 

Council of Colleges of Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine 
PO Box 65120 
Baltimore, MD 21209 
Fax: 410-464-6042 
ccaomcnt@comcast.net 

If you fax your application to us, please call to confirm receipt, as faxes are not always successfully transmitted. 

IMPORTANT NOTE: If you do not receive the acceptance materials approximately one month before the course date, you must 
contact us to find out why . Not receiving the acceptance materials is not a legitimate reason for missing a class, as we do not always 
receive (or are able to process) every application. 

Sincerely, 

Paula Diamond 
CCAOM CNT Program Manager 

Committed to Excellence in Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine Education 

© CCAOM I P. 0 . Box 65120 I Baltimore, MD 212091 Phone: 410-464-6040 I fax : 410-464-6042 
I 
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To: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
From: Adriane Maag, M.Om., Dipl. Ac. 
Date: January 18, 2015 
Re: Testimony in support of SB 2191 Acupuncture Licensure Bill 

Dear Mister Chairman and Members of the Committee, 

--¥- 2 f'3 \ 

My name is Adriane Maag and I am an acupuncturist living in Fargo .. I grew up in Fargo, and knew that I would be returning 
home upon graduation in December of 2011. I help people stay happy, healthy and whole, More !*>Pie af8 turning k> acupuncture as 
an adjunctive therapy to their current health plan. As patient frustration grows from taking pills in ell attempt to $0lve 1:heir medical 
ailments, they start to look for an alternative that is more natural or holistic. Acupuncture triggers the body's natural ability to heal itself. 
It is safe, effective and natural. It is one of the oldest ongoing medicines in the wor1cl, having at~ 2,000 years of recorded history. 
The World Health Organization has listed symptoms, diseases and conditions that have been sh9wn througt:i controlled trials to be 
treated effectively by acupuncture. Please see the attached article for more details. Over 50% of my ~ ant see~rrg ~puncture 
treatments for pain management. This is because they are no longer are getting relief from their medications, or no longer want to be 
taking numerous medications. In addition, many couples use acupuncture to help with fertility. 

Patients are asked to complete a confidential health questionnaire and are informed that acupuncturists follow. HIPAA (health 
privacy) guideHnes just like a doctor's office. The health questionnaire is very important to the tntatment plan. It Is tho!QUQh arc! 
extensive, providing the practitioner a whole body overview of how each patient's body is functioning in terms of TractitloMI Chinese 
Medicine (TCM). Based on patient infonnation I am able to detennine. and customize, the specific points to use for each, patient We 
visit in a relaxing treatment room, discussing any health concerns the patient has. We focus on the main COl'llplaint that bioughUhem in 
as well as any other areas of discomfort in regards to their health. We talk about the type (constant, intermittent better at night or day, 
etc.) and quality (sharp, burning, tingling, cdlii'lg, etc.) of pain or discomfort how it affects daily IMng. or sleep, and What inaltes tt better 
or worse. After going over their health history, I explain to my patients what acupuncture is going to specificalJy dO for theirallinent. 
Often times, acupuncture is done while you are wearing your street clothes, just rolling up sleeves or pant legS and taking off shoes and 

• ~ks. After th~ ~les are inserted, the .patient. re~ and relaxes with quiet music: R~~ time is typical~ 2G.30 minutes. A 
midday nap, quiet time for personal refleCtion, or Just time for you away from 'M>ftc, kids/farruly is never a compantanyooe has about 
their acupuncture treatment. After needles are removed, one can go about the rest of the day with their normal daily cdivity level. 

With each new patient I stress how needles are handled and disposed of. They are sterile, single use needfes that are the Width 
of 2 human hairs. The skin is cleaned with isopropyt alcohol prior to receiving acupuncture. The needles are disposed intD sharps 
containers as medk:al was1e. They are NEVER reused. The approved acupuncture programs all have clean needle training as a part of 
the curriculum in order to enter student clinic, as well as graduate. In order to be nationally certified, one mustrileeive CleanNeedle 
Technique, or CNT, certification. The course is rigorous, with both theoretical and practical components. It includes lectll'e, 
demonstration, as well as written and practical examinations. This CNT coursework totals approximately 15-l8 hours. 

Every day acupuncturists are exposed to blood borne pathogens. Knowing how to properly h~~ dispose of needle$ is of 
utmost importance in the acupuncture profession. Forty-four states plus the District of Columbia, •well as on.the' national le""1 have 
standards and certifications that are already in place for those who meet the requirements to receive ~title ~; ~rist or 
L.Ac. The fact that there are currently no regulations in place for the state of North Dakota is extremely·dis(:oneer:ting to me: and my, 
colleagues, drawing on the issue of public protection. 

Please see the following page for the attachments to my testimony. Thank you for your time. it is Q~Y ~~~· 

Warmly, 

~~. Ac 
(Masters of Science in Oriental Medicine, Diplomate of Acupuncture (NCCAOM)) 
Acupuncturist 

·~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
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Acupuncture Today 
October, 2004, Vol. OS, Issue 10 

What Conditions Does Acupuncture Treat (According to the World 
Health Organization)? 
By John Amaro, LAC, DC, Dip/. Ac. (NCCAOM), Dipl. Med.Ac. (IAMA) 

In contemporary applications of acupuncture in North America, it is becoming increasingly common to hear patients 
complain that they are being challenged by their insurance carrier with the comment that acupuncture is not effective 
for a particular situation, and therefore coverage is denied. 

Of course, It Is obvious that Insurance companies are in the business to minimize costs, and escalate productivity and 
profit. As a result, it is not uncommon or unl ikely that our patients wil l  be denied coverage only because the Insurance 
carrier has deemed acupuncture is not an effective or approved treatment. 

The World Health Organization (WHO), whose authority concerning health-related matters internationally cannot be 
challenged, has compiled a l ist of symptoms, syndromes, disease processes, pathologies, traumas and conditions that 
have definitely been proven as effectively treated by acupuncture. The WHO has also compiled a list of diseases, 
symptoms and conditions for which acupuncture has shown definite therapeutic effects, but more proof Is needed to 
establish acupuncture as a mainstream form of treatment. Should a curious patient, insurance company or colleague 
require proof of acupuncture's effectiveness, the following list is something you will want to keep on file. Its use will 
be inevitable. 

In an official report, Acupuncture: Review and Analysis of Reports on Controlled Clinical Trials, the WHO (WHO) has 
listed the following symptoms, diseases and conditions that have been shown through controlled trials to be treated 
effectively by acupuncture : 

• 
• low back pain 
• neck pain 
• sciatica 
• tennis elbow 

knee pain 
• periarthritis of the shoulder 
• sprains 
• facial pain ( including cranlomandibular 

disorders) 
• headache 
• dental pain 
• tempromandibular {TMJ) dysfunction 
• rheumatoid arthritis 
• induction of labor 
• correction of malposltion of fetus (breech 

presentation) 
• morning sickness 
• nausea and vomiting 
• postoperative pain 
• stroke 
• essential hypertension 
• primary hypotension 
• renal colic 
• leucopenia 
• adverse reactions to radiation or 

chemotherapy 
• al lergic rhinitis, Including hay fever 
• biliary colic 

depression (including depressive neurosis 
and depression following stroke) 

• acute bacillary dysentery 
• primary dysmenorrhea 
• acute epigastralgia 
• peptic ulcer 
• acute and chronic gastritis 

.. ' 



The foregoing list is absolute concerning acupuncture's effectiveness; however the report continues 
with three more categories: 

1 .  Diseases, symptoms and conditions for which the therapeutic effect of acupuncture has been 
shown, but further proof is needed (68 specific conditions).  These conditions are effectively 
treated as in the first category; it's just that more trials are necessary to establish the proof 
scientifically. 

2. Diseases, symptoms and conditions reporting some therapeutic effects for which acupuncture is 
worth trying ( nine conditions). 

3 .  Diseases, symptoms and conditions in which acupuncture may be tried, provided the practitioner 
has special modern medical knowledge and adequate monitoring equipment (eight conditions) . 
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To: Government and Veteran Affairs Committee 

From: Tanya Boehland 

Date: January 2 1 ,  20 1 5  

RE: Testimony in support of SB 2 1 9 1  Acupuncture Licensure Bil l  

Mister Chairman and Members of the Committee; 

My name is Tanya Boehland. I have lived in Fargo, ND since 1 995.  I am a North Dakota licensed 

Reflexologist and have a full time practice in Fargo. I have found Acupuncture to greatly help me in 

several personal traumatic situations involving my hands. I will tel l  you about my first time. 

I was first introduced to Traditional Chinese Acupuncture for pain and trauma relief in 20 1 0. I had just 

spent two 1 1  hour days peeling sandbags off pallets to help create a seven foot tall - 1 00,000 unit 

sandbag dike in my neighborhood during the 20 1 0  spring flood. I sought out acupuncture treatment the 

next day for my crippled wrists that were spasming from sandbagging overuse. It was a very painful 

and frightening situation for me because I needed my hands to do my job, and function in general . After 

receiving just one acupuncture treatn:ient which included needle placements all over my body (not just 

my hands), I was nearly pain free, and had almost complete full range of motion return to each of my 

wrists. I was amazed at the dramatic results because just the year before - during the 2009 flood - I 

suffered the same wrist symptoms after a same intense neighborhood flood fight. I treated my wrists that 

year with advil, ice, massage, and chiropractic treatment. I did not have normal use of my hands for 

almost full  two months following that traumatic 2009 ordeal. 

I dont know of any other therapy that could have helped me as effectively as Acupuncture proved to 

with my past hand injuries. In my opinion, nothing in Western-based medicine can duplicate the healing 

and health effects of Traditional Chinese Acupuncture. 

Thank you for your time. I can be reached at 70 1 -566-2904 for any questions. 

Most Sincerely, 

Tanya S. Boehland 

3327 46th Ave. S. 

Fargo, ND 5 8 1 04 

I I 
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CONCORDIA 
C O L L E G E  

Global Learning 
1 / 1 5/20 1 5  

To: Government and Veterans Affairs Commltt� 
From: Joy Navratil, Study Away Coordinator, Concordia College 
Re: T estlmony In support of SB 2 1 9 1  Acupuncture Llcensure Bill 

Dear Government and Veterans Affairs Committee Members, 

S B  �,a, ' 

I om a North Dakota resident writing In support of North Dakota licensing Its acupuncturist (SB 2 1 9 1 Aalpuncture Llcensure 
Bill). I have been doing acupuncture since 2007 for a variety of health concerns. 1 expe.rlenced Insomnia for 
approximately 2 months and the first night I slept was after an acupuncture appointment. I have noticed significant 
improvement In my health after to acupuncture treatments. Additionally, I enjoy the relaxing benefits of acupuncture. 

I have seen three different Individuals for acupuncture therapy. The first was a homeopathic p'hysldon who had the proper 
acupuncture schooling and the third earned her master's degree In acupuncture. After seeing the �athk: doctor for 
acupuncture In my home town I wonted to find someone In Fargo who I could see for acup'1ftdUr•. At thlS tim. I. did not 
know there was a difference In the amount of acupuncture schooling/training that one completed and ended up going to a 
chiropractor who did acupuncture. I saw no improvement for my health aliments by r�lng c:icupuncture treotment from 
the chiropractor. Furthermore, during treatment I didn't experience the relaxing effect that I e�perlenced with my previous 
acupuncture provider. I was so disappointed that I never went back and did some reseorch to find a person that ho� a 
master's degree In acupuncture for treatment. That's when I found my current acupuncturist who received lwtr master's 
degree In acupuncture and have been going to her ever since. 

As someone who hos visited a chiropractor with the minimum acupuncture training and two others who hove bffn properly 
educated In acupuncture, I know firsthand how Important It Is to receive treatment from someone who know� what they are 
doing. Acupuncturist prt:>fesslonals deeply core about their patients' health conc:ems and want them to receive the best 
possible care by a trained professional and I think the state of North Dakota should honor that wish by l!<*ndng 
acupuncturist who have a master's degree/homeopathic medicine degree. 

Please feel free to contact me for further questioning about my experience. 

� ;v,..� Joy Navratil · 

Study Away Coordinator 
Concordia College 
Global Learning 
W: 2 1 8.299.3 1 86 
C: 70 1 .730.4002 
E: lnavrati@cord.edu 
Home Address: 
1 00 1 1 7th Street South 
Fargo, ND 5 8 1 03 

901 8th St. S., Moorhead, MN 56562 

(218)  299-3927 • ConcordiaCollegi:.edu 
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TO: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
From: Brittany Petrick, RN, BSN 
1/16/15 
Re: Testimony in support of SB 2191 Acupuncture Licensure Bill 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, 
I am writing in support to pass this bill so that North Dakota will license its 

acupuncturists. I am from Rocklake ND, grew up in North Dakota, and went to nursing 
school in Jamestown ND. I decided to further my healthcare education by going back to 
school for my Master's in Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine. I am currently attending 
Southwest Acupuncture College in Boulder CO, which is a four year Master's program 
consisting of 3,092.5 hours. 

I will graduate in 2016 and have chosen not to move back to North Dakota as it is 
a state that does not offer licensure for acupuncturists. I strongly urge you to pass this 
bill as it will have a positive impact on North Dakota and its citizens. This bill would 
ensure that practitioners are competent in their profession, making ethical decisions, 
and maintaining their competency through continuing education and recertification. All 
of this means safe and effective practice to protect the public. 

Thank you for your time, 

J2rrt;T· ~~ 
~./&~ 

Brittany Petrick, RN, BSN 
Denver CO 
(701 )550-0089 



To: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
From: Alexandra Matthews 
Date: January' 16, 2015 
Re: Testimony\ in support of SB 2191 Acupuncture Ucensure Bill 

Mr. Cbainnan and Members of the Committee. 

'/� 3  

As a future health care professional, the licensure of acupuncture in the state of 
North Dakota is very important to my future career and success. In 2012, l received my 
Bachelors of Science in B iology with an emphasis in health and medical sciences from 
Minnesota State University-Moorhead. I also graduated with a minor in Anthropology. The 
ambitions of receiving my Masters Degree in Oriental medicine were set in place long 
before I graduated. I decided this was the best path for my education and future career for 
many reasons. There is a need for holistic medicine in the state of North D�kota. In other 
parts of the country, you can easily receive acupuncture treatments without havtng to travel 
long distances. In North Dakota, the practitioners are low in numbers. This makes it 
difficult for people that choose to use acupuncture for their diseases to receive proper 
treatment and care. The popularity of acupuncture is on the rise fn the Midwestern states. 
AJong the coasts, it has already taken hold and is used in hospitals and other health care 
settings. I feel there is a large market for this type of work in the future ln No,rth Dakota. 
This would create more jobs and create a better health care experience for patlents. 
Acupuncture works for a variety of symptoms and diseases. It can be used to treat the 
common cold or it can be used to treat the side effects caused by life saving medications for 
a person being treated for diabetes that is experiencing neuropathy. The p ositive outcomes 
from the use of acupuncture are endless and I'm excited to be a part of the movement 

I was born and raised in the state of North Dakota. My family has owned smaU 
businesses in the state dating all the way back to my Great Grandfather, Milo Matthews. l 
will be carrying on that "family tradition" by returning to the State to open an acupuncture 
clinic when I finish school. North Dakota is my home. I could not choose a better place to 
open a small business and start my career� Currently, 44 states provide llcensure in. the 
field of acupuncture. North Dakota is on of 6 states that does not. l am confident that this 
will soon change. I feel having licensure in the state is best for me and for my patients. lt  
creates a level of protection for all parties involved in healthcare treatment and also will 
give a sense of comfort to the patients that 1 am licensed to complete a task that benefits 
their health. After 7 years of intense education, being able to receive a license in the state I 
will be practicing in will be very meaningful and well deserved. 

Thank you for your time, 

Jll78'r' � - ttn�a_...r r - ---

Masters of Acupuncture Student 
Northwestern Health Sciences 

Resident of Fargo, North Dakota 
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My Profile Page NCCAOM Certification POA Search Engine Find A Practitioner State Licensing Helpful NCCAOM Links 

State Licensing 

State Licensing Requirements List 

Although a majority of states require the NCCAOM examination or certification, each state regulatory board carries unique requirements for licensure. As a 

service to our Dlplomates and candidates, a table of requirements for each state can be viewed clicking the ''View Website" link for each state. In addition , 
this table provides the contact list for each state regulatory agency. Although NCCAOM regularly updates the information contained in table, the 
NCCAOM does not guarantee the accuracy of the Information. State rules and regulations are subject to change; therefore, you should always 
confirm current requirements for I/censure with your state board. 
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Government and Affairs Committee 

Testimony in support of Senate Bill 2 1 9 1  - Acupuncture Licensing Bill 

Date 23 Jan 20 1 5  

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, 

My name is Stephanie Belohlavek-Geiger and I am a resident of Mandan. I 
served honorably in the United States Marine Corps and am currently a 
readjustment counselor for the Bismarck Vet Center where I counsel combat 
veterans and their famil ies. I am also a Co-founder of the Dakota Sisterhood of 
Women Veterans. 

Due to my military service, I have been diagnosed with Post Traumatic Stress 
Disorder, which created secondary health symptoms such as anxiety, depression 
and insomnia among other health issues. Some of these other issues lead to 
surgery in 2008, which is when my Rheumatoid Arthritis (RA) began. 

Before Acupuncture I was using Methotrexate to control my RA where the side 
effects from the medicine were more debilitating to me than the effects of the 
disease. My Rheumatologist told my husband and me that I would be in a wheel 
chair within 6 months of my diagnosis due to the severity of my RA. That was a 
tough diagnosis to hear when you are a forty-one old mother of five. 

Prior to the onset of RA, I was working part time for the Bismarck Vet Center, a 
full  time student at the University of Mary working on my undergraduate degree, 
and owned and operated a lawn care service. I was running and lifting weights a 
minimum of five days a week, and loved to cook and garden for my husband and 
our children. Needless to say, I was very active prior to RA entering my life. 

RA and the subsequent treatments left me too tired and stiff to function with 
numerous swollen joints to the point where it was a physical and emotional 
struggle to get out of bed in the morning, let alone go to work. It was increasingly 
difficult to focus or complete assigned schoolwork, to take care of my children, or 
to maintain any physical activity. Crocheting and running were my primary coping 
mechanisms I used when struggling with my PTSD symptoms and RA left me 
unable to do either. My life at this point was a day-to-day struggle. 

Early on in my journey with RA, I was encouraged by a chiropractor to give 
acupuncture a try. Since my i llness, I have an intense fear of needles and kept 
finding excuses not to make an appointment. Unfortunately for me that was a 
poor reason not try acupuncture. Because I was unwilling to try something new, I 
was left with years of fighting a body that did not allow me to complete daily 
activities without help. 
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My first treatment with acupuncture was in April of 2012. I was having a 
particularly intense flare that would not level off. My fingers were swollen to the 
point where I could not bend them and my wrists and ankles were severely 
affected. My wrists would not rotate and I could not walk without holding on to 
something. Again the chiropractor encouraged me to try acupuncture, saying he 
had been researching acupuncture and felt it could be beneficial for me. I finally 
called and made an appointment; one of the best decisions I have made 
concerning not only my fight with RA but for my overall well-being. 

After my first session, I remember getting in my vehicle and calling my husband 
where I shared my experience with him. The inflammation in my hands was 
showing marked signs of reduced swelling and noticeable increased mobility. I 
could not understand how a few placed needles could have that much impact 
after one treatment. 

To me, acupuncture is more of a total body form of therapy and helped my body 
as a whole not just with the RA, to include some of my PTSD symptoms. After 
treatment to help with stress and anxiety, I was able to sleep more than a couple 
of hours at a time, which my body needed to help the healing process. Within a 
short time frame I was once again walking, slow jogging, able to do some light 
lifting and even able to open doors which I hadn't been able to do for a number of 
years. 

In roughly a year I was no longer on the Methotrexate, my liver enzymes were 
back to normal and I was in the process of regaining a semblance of my old life 
style. Acupuncture cannot rebuild the joints that were damaged, but from my 
experience, acupuncture appears to be able to maintain the joints that are still 
functional. The RA medication is so hard on a persons vital organs especially the 
heart and liver, not to mention numerous other side effects. Acupuncture has 
given me an opportunity to experience activities I thought I would never be able 
to en·0 again. 

Wi L uJ 
anie Belohlavek-Geiger MSW,LCSW 

Readjustment Counselor, Bismarck Vet Center 
Self employed -Lawn Service 
Co-Founder Dakota Sisterhood of Women Veterans 
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Warrior Clinic reduces pain medication 
use 
M•y 2, 2011 

Bv Joshua L. Wick 

· o 1.!i<t Be Iha f<st of Vo"' friends to like this. 

pain man11gement program.at the Walter Reed Army Medic.al Center W11rr;or Clinic has drastkally reduced lhe 
tber of woun~ed warriors receiving prescribed pain medkation. 

WASHINGTON (Army News Service, April 29, 2011) -- The pain management program 
at the Walter Reed Army Medical Center Warrior Clinic has drastically reduced the 
number of wounded warriors receiving prescribed pain medication. 

Through a combination of administering painkillers differently at the onset of Injury, 
alternative pain treatment methods and Increased oversight of prescribed painkillers, 
the percentage of Soldiers at the clinic using prescribed narcotics has dropped from 63 
percent in 2006, to just 10.2 percent In 2011. 

" It's a holist ic, interdisciplinary, and multi -modal approach," said Dr. Christopher 
Spevak, an anesthesiologist and pain physician at the Warrior Clinic. "Pain management 
is not simply giving opioids ." 

He explained that opioids are a class of prescription narcotics that Include such drugs as 
morphine, codeine and oxycodone. 

According to Spevak, in the last couple of years research has shown that If doctors 
effectively t reat pain at the onset, they can prevent the "rewiring " of the patient's brain 
and prevent chronic pain later on . Treating acute pain as close to the time of injury, 
with the appropriate medication, is just one part of this multidisciplinary approach. 

"There are many ways to treat pain initially; opioids are part of the whole pie," Spevak 
said. "We have regional techniques and we have gone forward right Into the battlefield 
and placed regional catheters to infuse local anesthetics to numb the area." 

The Warrior Clinic has also devoted a significant amount of resources Into looking at 
alternative methods for managing and minimizing pain . 

The alternative solutions include training sessions that can help Soldiers deal with pain 
in ways other than with medications. Included are options like acupuncture, chiropractic 
therapy, yoga and biofeedback. 

The dynamic and holistic approach to addressing and treating pain uses a wide variety 
of resources that look at the mind, body, and cognitive behaviors of the Soldier as well 
as Incorporating and educating the Soldiers families Into the treatment and overall 
management of pain, officials said . 

Also part of the program is monitoring prescription use to make sure Soldiers are only 
getting the medications they need, and in the dosages they need, and only for as long 
as they need them. 

Elements of the policy include appropriate tracking and monitoring of Soldiers and their 
medications, controlling quantities, and prescribing the right medication at the right 
time. 

BO()l<MARK & SHARF.' 
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S B  2 1 9 1  Licensed Acupucturist Bi l l  

Lezlie Link, N D  

Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 

January 23,  2 0 1 5  

Good morning, Mr. Chairman and M embers o f  the Senate Government and Veterans 

Affairs Committee. 

My name is Lezl ie Link. I am a doctor of naturopathic medicine. I serve as the 

chairperson of the North Dakota Board of Integrative H ealth Care. I am here today 

to state that the board members of the North Dakota Board of Integrative Health 

Care have met and discussed Senate Bil l  2 1 9 1. The board's position is n eutral. 

Thank you, M r. Chairman and M embers of the Senate Government and Veterans 

Affairs Committee for you time. 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SB 2191 

Page 5, line 30, replace "Acupuncturist" with "Licensed Acupuncturist" 

Page 5, line 30 replace "L.Ac." with "LAc" 

l __ 
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SB 2 1 9 1  Blake Blowers 
House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee Hearing 
March 1 2, 201 5  

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Government and Veterans Affairs Committee, 

My name is Blake Blowers. I'm an acupuncturist in Bismarck. I'm registered as lobbyist # 1 67 for the 
North Dakota Association of Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine. Senate Bill 2 1 9 1  has been 
introduced on our behalf, and I have been asked to explain the bill. 

Senate Bill 2 1 9 1  is a licensing bill for acupuncturists. The four main objectives ofthis bill are to 
establish licensing requirements, define a scope of practice, create titles and regulation under the board 
of Integrative Health Care. 

Section 1 (page 1) 
The change proposed in this section exempts acupuncturists from NDCC chapter 43- 1 7  which regulates 
Physicians. An exception is necessary to create a new section of code specific to acupuncturists. 

Section 2 (page 1) 
This section creates an amendment to the Physicians chapter. It defines that acupuncturists must 
comply with reporting requirements when a patients trauma appears to be from a violent crime, 
possible violation of criminal law in this state. If a report is made concerning a victim of domestic 
violence, or sexual assault, the individual must be provided with referral information and reported to 
proper agencies in their county. 

Section 3 (page 2) 
Section 3 defines the placement of a licensed acupuncturists to be under the Board of Integrative Health 
Care. The board of Integrative Health Care has anticipated acupuncturists joining them since the 
creation of the board last legislative session. It also defines that the use of the word "Board" from this 
point forward will imply the Board of Integrative Health Care, unless stated otherwise. 

Section 4 (pages 2-3) 
This section outlines the powers and duties of the board. Such as establishing a scope of practice for 
acupuncturists, determine if an exam from another state or country is equivalent for reciprocity, 
establish educational standards, and set fees. They also will produce a list of all licensed individuals 
and level of licensure and make it available upon request. 

The board will also establish continuing education requirements and have the power to allow 
supervised student practice. 

Section 5 (page 3) 
States that the board shall issue a license to an applicant who fulfills the qualifications listed within the 
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· Government and Veterans Affairs Committee Hearing 

chapter regulating acupuncturists. 

Section 6 (pages 3-4) 
Deals with license renewal and continuing education. It defines the effective start date of a license and 
the expiration date as well. It also describes the conditions of renewal based on payment and 
continuing education requirements being met, before a license will be granted by the board. 
It also describes what actions will take place if requirements are not met, and it provides an exception 
to anyone who doesn't meet the deadline for application due to a hardship. 

Section 7 (page 4) 
This section provides a penalty of a class B misdemeanor for anyone who violates the chapters 
pertaining to Acupuncturists, the board of Integrated Health Care, Naturopaths, or Music Therapists. 

Section 8 (page4-5) 
Begins the creation of the chapter for acupuncturists. 

Page 5 (line 1) defines acupuncture and provides a list of therapies that would be considered the 
practice of acupuncture. The therapies listed would be used as they are taught within an approved 
acupuncture program. 

Page 5 (line 7) states that an acupuncturist is a person who has been granted licensure by the board of 
Integrative Health Care. 

Page 5 (line 9) Is one of the most important parts of this bill, as it defines the level of training expected 
of an individual who applies for an acupuncture license under the board of Integrative Health Care. 

This requirement is what will separate the acupuncture specialists from practitioners who simply use 
acupuncture as an adjunctive therapy. 

Currently, there are a few different ways a person can complete acupuncture trailling. The most 
inclusive way is to attend a graduate level program, at a college or university, which prepares the 
practitioner with 2300 to 2500 hours of course work and supervised clinical training in acupuncture. 
This is the level of training the members of our Association have. 

The other route is to take a several weekend course in acupuncture that provides 1 00 to 300 hours of 
training. Typically, the practitioners who go this route are specialists in a an area of medicine such as 
allopathy or chiropractic. 

The training for an acupuncturist from an institution as it is required in this section, would provide 
approximately 24 times more training than that of the most basic acupuncture course required of other 
professionals. It would also require that each applicant has graduated from a nationally accredited 
Master's or Doctoral degree program, which would be a 2.5 to 4 year program, and pass the board 
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exams provided by the National Certification Commission of Acupuncture and Oriental 
Medicine(NCCAOM). 

The reason we're emphasizing the NCCAOM boards is that a significant amount of education in 

acupuncture training is required to even qualify for these board exams and it's our national certification 
agency. By requiring NCCAOM involvement, the licensee must stay current with the NCCAOM 
standards of meeting or exceeding continuing education and CPR requirements. 

The NCCAOM is a nonprofit organization and the only organization that validates entry level 
competency in the practice of acupuncture and oriental medicine, through professional certification. 
Please see attachment #4 for more information on them. 

Part a. and b.  of this section relate to accreditation of a school that would hold an equivalent program if 
not specifically recognized by an agency that the United States department of education has 

recognized. The school would stil l  be required to meet all other require�ents of the board and would 
only be approved after an investigation of the program by the board. 

The accreditation agency that wil l  be used as the bench mark for determining whether a program will 
meet accreditation standards is the Accreditation Committee for Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine . 
They are recognized by the U .S .  Department of Education as a "specialized and professional" 
accrediting agency with the primary purpose being to establish comprehensive educational and 
institutional requirements for acupuncture and Oriental Medicine programs, and to accredit programs 
and institutions that meet these requirements. 

All of the reputable col leges and universities in the U.S .  are either fully accredited or have candidacy 
for accreditation from this organization. By enforcing such a requirement, it will automatically 
separate lesser programs or the "diploma mills" from the legitimate acupuncture programs that properly 

train and prepare an acupuncturist. 

Page 5 (l ine 20) Is an exemption that states some of the therapies l isted in the definition of acupuncture 
are not the exclusive privilege of acupuncturists and their use by any individual who is allowed to 
legal ly do so in this state, by their board, is not being prohibited by this chapter. This wil l  not affect 
those who are already practicing acupuncture under the scope of their own license. 

Page 5 (Line 27) Chapter 43-6 1 -03 is the beginning of the title creation relating to acupuncture and 
establishes a date the title will go into effect. 

This chapter states that an individual may not practice any form of acupuncture without a license issued 
by the board. It also states that the title "LAc" or "Licensed Acupuncturist" 

will be the title given to those who are l icensed as acupuncturists by the board of Integrative Health 
Care, and anyone who is not licensed by the board and uses those terms or initials as identification 
without being licensed is engaging in the practice of acupuncture without a license. 

We feel that title creation is particularly important, because of the tremendous difference in education 



• 

• 

• 

SB 2 1 9 1  Blake Blowers 
Government and Veterans Affairs Committee Hearing 

between those who have completed graduate level acupuncture training from an accredited university 
or college, and other professionals who provide acupuncture as an adjunct therapy. 

Page 6 

(Line 1 )  43-61 -04 requires anyone wishing to practice acupuncture, use the title "Licensed 
Acupuncturist" or the abbreviation "LAc" to follow the board of Integrative Health Care approved 
application process. 

(Line 5) 43-61 -05 defines the terms and conditions required of an applicant for licensure. To give 
specific examples of what we are asking here I will give further detail on a few of the requirements. 
An applicant will have a personal history indicating they will not be a liability to the board or the 
public, and they will have completed all the requirements for application set forth by the board of 
Integrative Health Care. 

Part a. requires the completion of a graduate level acupuncture program and would generally contain 
courses such as those listed in attachment # 1 .  

Part b. ensures the applicant has successfully completed the board exams offered by the NCCAOM 
acupuncture board exam as outlined in attachment #3. 

This section also requires a person have the physical, mental and professional capability to practice 
acupuncture and a history free of anything that would constitute grounds for disciplinary action by the 
board. 

Page 6 (Line 23) 43-6 1 -06 is provided as a narrow exception clause based on a review of education and 
experience of a few practitioners in our state who had taken a national acupuncture exam before the 
Department of Education credentials were established. This is not a grandfather clause. 

Page 7 (Line 3) 43-61 -07 gives the board the ability to grant reciprocity to an individual who has 
completed a test that is deemed an equivalent to the one required in this chapter. The individual would 
also have to meet all other requirements of the board for licensure. 

Page 7 (Line 1 6) 43-61 -08 Defines the practice of acupuncture in terms of what can and cannot be done 
by an acupuncturist. 

Part 1 ,  subcategories a. and b. states that acupuncturists will not prescribe or administer any therapy 
that is not part of the practice of acupuncture. 

Part 2, subcategories a. and b. Define the therapies that an acupuncturist would be allowed to use as 
part of an acupuncture treatment. 
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Page 7 (Line 29) 43-6 1 -09 states that an acupuncturist has the same duties as a licensed physician with 
regard to public health when it comes to reporting, except the authority and responsibility of the 
acupuncturist is consistent with the scope of practice established under the board of Integrative Health 
Care. 

Page 8 
(Line 3) 4 3-6 1 - 1 0  allows for the employment of an acupuncturist by a hospital as long as the provisions 
of 43-1 7-42, which is the "Empolyment of Physicians by hospitals" is met . 



List of attachments - SB 2191 - Acupuncture Licensing Bill 

Blake Blower's Attachments 

1. A typical accredited Acupuncture/Oriental Medicine master's degree curriculum. 3, 180 

hours. 4 years. http://www.aaaom.edu/programs/masters degree.html 

2. A typical Chiropractic Acupuncture Certificate program curriculum - 105 hours. 7 

weekends. http://www.nwhealth.edu/conted/seminars/acucert2.html 

3. NCCAOM's eligibility requirements to sit for the national boards. 

http://www.nccaom.org/applicants/eligibility-requirements 

4. CCAOM's comparison chart of acupuncture education programs. 

http://www.ccaom.org/downloads/KnowYourAcupuncturist.pdf 

5. CCAOM's Clean Needle Technique Course Overview. 

http ://www.ccaom.org/cntprogram. asp 
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PROGRAMS 
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Massage Certificate 
Community Education 
Continuing Education 
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FINANCIAL AID 
FACULTY 
CLINICS 

Home I Newsletters i Open Houses I Site Map ! Links ! Contact � /}  
EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS 
Master's Degree Program 

The total master's degree program curriculum of 
3 1 80 hours (1 82 credits) includes 1 740 hours of 
didactic instruction on acupuncture and Oriental 
medicine, 540 hours of bioscience-related 
material, and 900 hours of clinical observation 
and experience. The full-time program is 
designed to run twelve total trimesters, with fifteen 
weeks per trimester. The maximum time for 
program completion is eight years, taking eight 

credits per trimester minimum. It is also possible to accelerate through the 
program and complete it in nine trimesters. 

Courses marked with an asterisk (*) are electives. 
CLICK HERE FOR A UST OF COURSE DESCRIPTIONS. 

CLICK H ERE FOR A LIST OF COURSE TEXTBOOKS. 

First Year 
First Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/Week 
1 1 01 TCM Theory 60 4 4 
1 1 02 Meridians 30 2 2 
1 1 03 TCM & Chinese Culture 30 2 2 
1 1 04 Anatomy & Physiology I 30 2 2 
1 1 05 Western Medical Terminology 30 2 2 
1 1 06 Surface Anatomy 30 2 2 
1 1 07 Tai Chi 30 2 2 
1 1 08 Clinical Observation I 30 1 2 

Total 270 1 7  18 

Second Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/Week 
1 201 TCM Diagnostics I 30 2 2 
1 202 Point Location I 60 4 4 
1 203 TCM Pathology 30 2 2 
1 204 Anatomy & Physiology I I  30 2 2 
1 205 Microbiology 30 2 2 
1 206 TCM Dietary Therapy I 30 2 2 
1 207 Healing Qi Gong 30 2 2 
1 208 Clinic Observation I I  30 1 2 

Total 270 1 7  1 8  

Third Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/Week 
1 301  TCM Diagnostics I I  30 2 2 
1 302 Point Location I I  60 4 4 
1 303 Clinical Chinese Herbology I 60 4 4 
1 304 Anatomy & Physiology I l l  60 4 4 
1 305 TCM Dietary Therapy I I  30 2 2 
1 306 Clinic Observation I l l  30 1 2 

Total 270 1 7  1 8  

Second Year 
First Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/Week 
2101 TCM Diagnostics I l l  60 4 4 
2 1 02 Acupuncture Prescriptions 60 4 4 
2 1 03 Clinical Chinese Herbology I I  60 4 4 
2 1 04 Western Medical Pathology I 30 2 2 
2105 Medical Chinese* 30 2 2 
2 1 06 Clinic Observation IV 30 1 2 

Total 240 1 5  1 6  

Second Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/Week 

... . . . ... ............... . . .. . ,. ( Searctr) . .  . . l 

lnt'Ormattori Request 

A m e r i c a n  
Academy or 
Acupuncture 
& Oriental 
M e d i cine 

1925 WCountyRd 82 
Roseville, MN 55113 

Directions 
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2201 OSHNCNT 1 5  1 1 V�<l 2202 Acupuncture Techniques 60 4 4 
2203 Clinical Chinese Herbology I l l  60 4 4 
2204 CPR/FA 1 5  1 1 
2205 Western Medicine Pathology I I  30 2 2 
2206 Clinic Observation V 30 1 2 

Total 210 13  14 

Third Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/Week 
2301 TCM Treatment Principles 30 2 2 
2302 Auricular Acupuncture 30 2 2 
2303 Chinese Herbal Formulas I 60 4 4 
2304 Western Physical Assessment 60 4 4 
2305 Medical Tuina 30 2 2 
2306 Clinic Observation VI 30 1 2 

Total 240 1 5  1 6  

Third Year 
First Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/Week 
3101 . TCM Internal Medicine I 60 4 4 
3 1 02 TCM Neurology 30 2 2 
31 03 Chinese Herbal Formulas I I  60 4 4 
3 1 04 Western Internal Medicine 60 4 4 
3 1 05 Adv. Acupuncture Techniques* 30 2 2 
3 1 06 Clinical Practice I 1 20 4 8 

Total 330 1 8  22 

Second Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/Week 
3201 TCM Internal Medicine II 60 4 4 
3202 Musculo-Skeletal Disorders 30 2 2 

in TCM 
3203 Chinese Herbal Formulas I l l  60 4 4 
3204 Pediatric Tuina 30 2 2 
3205 Scalp & Hand Acupuncture 30 2 2 
3206 Clinical Practice I I  120 4 8 

Total 330 1 8  22 

Third Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/Week 
3301 TCM Dermatology 30 2 2 
3302 Chinese Patent Medicine 30 2 2 
3303 Survey of Health Care System 30 2 2 
3304 Lab Data Reading 30 2 2 
3305 Yellow Emperor's Classic 30 2 2 

of Med* 
3306 Clinical Practice I l l  1 20 4 8 

Total 240 1 2  1 6  

Fourth Year 
First Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/Week 
4101 TCM Gynecology/Obstetrics 60 4 4 
4102 Febrile Diseases 30 2 2 
4103 Western Gynecology/Pediatrics 30 2 2 
4 1 04 TCM Geriatrics 30 2 2 
4 1 05 Board Review 30 2 2 
4106 Clinical Practice IV 1 20 4 8 

Total 270 1 4  1 8  

Second Trimester 
Course # Course ntle Hours Credits Hours/Week 
4201 TCM Psychology 30 2 2 
4202 Western Pharmacology 30 2 2 
4203 Medical Referral 30 2 2 
4204 TCM Counseling 30 2 2 

• 4205 Adv. Herbal Prescriptions* 30 2 2 
4206 Clinical Practice V 1 20 4 8 

Total 240 1 2  1 6  

Third Trimester 
Course # Course Title Hours Credits Hours/Week 
4301 TCM Cases Studies 30 2 2 



• 
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4302 TCM Pediatrics 30 2 2 
4303 Practice Management 30 2 2 
4304 Ethics, Legal & Professional 30 2 2 

Issues 
4305 Sensory Organ Disorders 30 2 2 

in TCM* 
4306 Clinical Practice VI 1 20 4 8 

Total 240 1 2  1 6  

In  order to complete the program, 1 80 hours of clinical observation are 
required during the first six trimesters, and 720 hours of clinical practice are 
required during the remaining six trimesters, during which students must 
complete at least 360 treatment sessions including at least 72 new patients. 

ABOUT AAAOM I EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS I ADMISSIONS I FINANCIAL AID I FACULTY I CLINICS 
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l!!I 2014-15 
Northwestern Chiropractic Acupuncture Certificate 

• Sc . 

© 
TUlTlON 

$1620 Full Program 
Discount (save $270) 

or $270 per session 

~ 
LOCATION 
On campus 

Click icon for 
directions 

® 
CE HOURS 

105 Full Program 
15 Per Session 

TIMES 
Sat 9am -6pm 
Sun 8am-4pm 

(1 hr lunch on your 
own each day) 

This course is taught by a chiropractor and licensed acupuncturist specifically to fit the needs of 
chiropractors. Both theoretical and practical clinical skills will be taught, giving you techniques to 
help you treat even the most difficult musculoskeletal problems. The information presented will 
also help prepare you for the National Board of Chiropractic Examiners CNCBE) acuouncture exam 
which is required in some states for chiropractors to practice acupuncture. 

About the Instructor 

CJ Oct. 25-
26, 2014 

[:J Nov. 22-
23, 2014 

[J Dec. 13-
14, 2014 

[:J Jan.31 -
Feb. 1, 
2015 

[:J Feb. 21-
22, 2015 

[J March 
14-15, 
2015 

Peter Lichtenstein, DC, CCSP, LAc - email link 

1992 graduate of Northwestern College of Chiropractic. 
Practicing chiropractor and holds a diplomate (NCCAOM} in acupuncture. 
Owns New Paltz Acupuncture and Chiropractic Clinic in upstate New York where he 
blends Eastern-style health care with traditional chiropractic. 
He is past-president of the Acupuncture Society of New York. 
Certified Chiropractic Sports Physician. 
Post-graduate faculty at Northwestern Health Sciences University since 2003. 

llcourse Description 

Theory : What is Yin and What is Yang? Clean Needle Technique 
Clinical Portion: Introduction to Needling, Elementary point location . Palpation of the 
Abdomen and Treatment of the Immune System. 

Theory: Five Element Theory and the Vital Substances 
Clinical Portion: Ancillary techniques including cupping, bleeding, pediatrics, 
moxibustion, Gua Sha, Treatment of the Low Back via Abdominal Palpation 

Theory: The Transformation of Qi & Functions of the Organs 
Clinical Portion: Introduction to Japanese acupuncture. Akabane diagnosis, Polarity 
and the use of Magnets and Ion Pumping Cords. Treating the Neck and the Shoulder. 

Theory: Causes of Disease and Beginning Pattern Identification 
Clinical Portion: Treatment of Structural Problems in the Scapula and Hips Region . 
Cervical Pain, Headaches and the treatment of inflammation with Metal and Water 
Points 

Theory: Functions of the Lung, Spleen and Heart. Tongue and Pulse. 
Clinical Portion: Lower Extremity, Using the Extra Vessels Treatment of scars and 
trigger point needling techniques. 

Theory: Functions of the Kidney and the Liver. Auricular Acupuncture and treating 
Addictions. 
Clinical Portion: Auricular Acupuncture, the upper extremity 

Theory: Putting it all together, using the diagnosis forms 
Clinical Portion: Sciatica using Pachi Pachi. Clinical Quiz. 

• ***Schedule is subject to change without notice *** 
Required Text - Included in Tuition: 

• Medical Asepsis for Acuouncturists (Safety Course Handout), by John Pirog 

SITE MAP 

HELP \ 0 
\ · 

• Chiropractic Acupuncture Theory and Clinical ~ates, by Peter Lichtenstein 

/ 
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HOME 

FORMS 

FIND A 

PRACTITIONER 

APPLICANTS 

DIPLOMA TES 

CONSUMERS 

PDA PROGRAM 

REGULATORY 

AFFAIRS 

NEWS AND EVENTS 

ABOUT US 

CONTACT US 

Eligibility Requirements 
Nome > :> App/Jeanes ><> Eligib1/1ty Requirements 

All NCCAOM Certification applicants must meet specific training requirements prior to sitting for the 

examinations. 

Eligibility requirements to become authorized to test and certification requirements which must be 

fulfilled before certification can be awarded are two different elements in the certification process. 

Examination Eligibility Requirements (U.S. Education) " (Click to Read) 

Pre-graduation Hour Requirements 

ACAOM Graduation Hour Requirement 
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Once your application is approved and you have been Issued an Authorization to Test fetter, you will 

not be required to meet any new eligibility requirements that may have been adopted since your 

application was received. 

Eligibility Requirements {International Education) T 

Certification Eligibility Routes T 

Applicant- Quick Fl"nds 

Foreign Language Exams 

Information 

Fees 

Certification Program Fact 

Sheets 

NCCAOM Certification 

Brochure 

Benefits of NCCAOM 

Certification 

Exam Content 

General - Frequently 

Asked Questions 

Approved Candidate 

Contact us 

Applicant- Forms 

NCCAOM Certification 

Handbooks and 

Applications 

NCCAOM Certification 

Handbook Order Form 

Agent Designation Form 

School Code Assigned by 

NCCAOM 

ADA Accommodations 

Applicant - Links 

Practice Tests 

International CNT Courses 

Education in a U.S. School 

ACAOM 

Education In a n  

International School 

NCCAOM Route 2 
Formal Education 

International Applfcants 

AACRAO 

WES 

ABT Exam 

Discontinuation 

Copyright 19 2014 by the Natlonal Certification Commission of Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine. All rights reserved. 
Terms and Conditions Privacy Polley 

Public Protection Through Quality Credentials® 



Council of Col!eges of 
Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine 

Know Your A cup uncturt"st 
Practitioners whose graduate education is in Acupuncture & Oriental Medicine (AOM) 
receive approximately 80% of their education exclusively in this field and undergo 
extensive clinical training averaging 3-4 years. Other healthcare practitioners may only 
use acupuncture, which is one of the many therapies of Oriental Medicine, as a technique 

in their primary practice. 

A philosophical distinction of Oriental Medicine is its whole person approach of mind, 
body, and spirit in a comprehensive energetic healthcare sysrem that includes acupuncture, 
herbs, Asian bodywork (e.g. acupressure, tui na, shiatsu), nutrition, tai chi, qi gong, and 
meditation. 

This chart is designed to illustrate the varying levels of education undertaken by healthcare 
professionals in acupuncture only and not in related curriculum, such as in the biosciences. 
Acupuncture should only be administered by a practitioner who has specific education in 
this field due to risk of improper needling, inadequate understanding of Oriental medical 
diagnostic procedures, transmission of disease, imbalancing of energy, or ethical violations. 
Ask your practitioner about his or her education in order to ensure that you receive the 
most professional acupuncture care available for your optimal health and wellness. www.ccaom.org 

,.. j ~ ""' </' "" " ( " '-' ~ ~ " "' 

'Ormtrttf Hqurs in .< 

, 1 ,~tUJ!l&l!rature EtiU64tiP11 f>r4cfiti1Ntfe}( Title , Ap plitafi,m 

3-4 years 
(1500 - 2000 hours in 
acupuncture)* 

300 hours or less 
in acupuncture 

100 hours or less 
in acupuncture 

Typically a Licensed Acupuncturist (LAc)** who has 
obtained a degree/diploma from an ACAOM-accredited 
college and has passed the national certification exams 
administered by the NCCAOM.*** 

Typically a medical doctor, osteopath, naturopath, or 
chiropractor who uses acupuncture as an adjunctive 
·technique. The World Health Organization recommends 
that medical doctors have a minimum of 200 hours of 
training to know when to refer to a more fully-trained 
Acupuncturist or Oriental Medicine practitioner. 

Typically a detox/auricular acupuncture technician or 
chiropractor (detox techs are generally limited to 5 points 
on the ear) 

A broad range of health 
issues, including chronic 
disease, pain, internal 
medicine, rehabilitation, 
and prevention 

Pain, basic ailments 

Addiction & pain 

* ACAOM's total curriculum requirement fur an acupuncture-only training program is 1905 hours and ranges between 1950-2600 hours for ACAOM-accredited and 
candidate acupuncture only training programs, with a minimum of 450 hours in the biomedical clinical sciences. 

*"Some states also designate the licensing tide (non-degree) as DOM or DAc, or Acupuncture Physician. Licensed Acupuncturists may have also obtained an OMD, 
PhD, or DAc for non-extensive post-graduate training. Thus, it is important to ask where such a tide was received. 

*'"ACAOM (Accreditation Commission fur Acupuncture & Oriental Medicine, www.acaom.org); NCCAOM (National Commission fur the Certification of 
Acupuncmre & Oriental Medicine, www.nccaom.org) 

Produced by the Council of Coi!eges of Acupuncture & Orient.al Medicine (CCAOM). For reprint information contact 301-476-7790 or 

executivedlrector@ccaom.org. For information about tf1e Council please see our web site at www.ccaom.org 
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Clean Needle Technique Course 

Overview 

Dear CNT Applicant, 

Thank you for your interest in the Clean Needle Technique (CNT) course, administered by the Council of Colleges of Acupuncture 
and Oriental Medicine (CCAOM). Successful completion of the CNT course is one of the requirements for National Certification 
Commission for Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine (NCCAOM) certification, as well as a licensing requirement in most states. 

Please note that the CCAOM CNT course is intended only for currently enrolled acupuncture students, persons currently enrolled in a 
state or NCCAOM approved tutorial program, persons who have graduated from an acupuncture and/or Oriental medicine program or 
school, licensed health care professionals legally able to practice acupuncture in the United States, or NADA detoxification 
specialists. In order to take the CCAOM CNT course, you must meet one of the eligibility criteria listed on page 2 of the application 
form. 

The CNT course contains several components: 

1 . an orientation 
2. detailed instruction on the theories, concepts and application of clean needle technique as described in the Clean Needle 

Technique Manual 
3. a demonstration of the practical application ofCNT 
4. a written exam 
5. a training session where each applicant can practice and 

• 

perfect the utilization and employment of CNT 
. a practical exam 

Each CNT course begins at 8:30 am and ends no later than 5:00 pm. Although the course may end before 5:00 pm, we cannot 
guarantee it. If you have any questions after reading the enclosed material, please call the CCAOM office at 410-464-6040, or email 
your questions to: ccaomcm@comcast.net. 

Applications can be sent by mail, by fax, or by e-mail (if sent by e-mail, please scan the application and send as an attachment so that 
signatures are visible) to: 

Council of Colleges of Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine 
PO Box65120 
Baltimore, MD 21209 
Fax:410-464-6042 
ccaomcnt@comcast.net 

If you fax your application to us, please call to confirm receipt, as faxes are not always successfully transmitted. 

IMPORTANT NOTE: If you do not receive the acceptance materials approximately one month before the course date, you must 
contact us to find out why. Not receiving the acceptance materials is not a legitimate reason for missing a class, as we do not always 
receive (or are able to process) every application. 

Sincerely, 

Paula Diamond 
CCAOM CNT Program Manager 

Committed to Excellence in Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine Education 

• © CCAOM IP. 0. Box 65120 I Baltimore, MD 21209 I Phone: 410-464-6040 I fax: 410-464-6042 

I 
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SB 2191 Acupuncture Bill 
Lezlie Link, ND 
House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
March 12, 2015 

Good morning Madam Chair and Members of the House Government and Veterans 
Affairs Committee. My name is Dr. Lezlie Link. I am a doctor of naturopathic medicine 
residing and practicing in Bismarck. I am also the chairperson for the North Dakota 
Board of Integrative Health Care, which regulates the profession of naturopathic 
medicine. 

The board has a chosen a position of neutral with regards to the scope of acupuncture 
to be potentially added to the North Dakota Board of Integrative Health Care, however, 
the board does feel that the ND BIHC is an appropriate board to regulate the profession 
of acupuncture. The ND BIHC was created to help ease the financial burden of small 
professions requiring a board. Currently, the ND BIHC regulates naturopathic doctors 
and music therapists. 

If you have any questions, I can provide additional information as you work on this bill in 
committee work. I can be reached via email, dr.lezlielink@gmail.com. 

Thank you for you time in this matter, 

Lezlie Link, ND 



To: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
From: Adriane Maag, M.Om., Dipl. Ac. 

• Date: March 12, 2015 
Re: Testimony in support of SB 2191 Acupuncture Licensure Bill 

• 

• 

Dear Mister Chairman and Members of the Committee, 

My name is Adriane Maag and I am an acupuncturist living in Fargo. I grew up in Fargo, and knew that I would be returning 
home upon graduation in December of 2011 . I help people stay happy, healthy and whole. More people are turning to acupuncture as 
an adjunctive therapy to their current health plan. As patient frustration grows from taking pills in an attempt to solve their medical 
ailments, they start to look for an alternative that is more natural or holi.stic. Acupuncture triggers the body's naturaf ability to heal itself. 
It is safe, effective and natural. It is one of the oldest ongoing medicines in the world, having at least 2,000 years of recorded history. 
The World Health Organization has listed symptoms, diseases and conditions that have been shown through controlled trials to be 
treated effectively by acupuncture. Please see the attached article for more details. Over 50% of my patients are seeking acupuncture 
treatments for pain management. This is because they are no longer are getting relief from their medications, or no longer want to be 
taking numerous medications. In addition, many couples use acupuncture to help with fertility. 

Patients are asked to complete a confidential health questionnaire and are informed that acupuncturists follow HIPAA (health 
privacy) guidelines just ltke a doctor's office. The health questionnaire is very important to the treatment plan. It is thorough and 
extensive, providing the practitioner a whole body overview of how each patient's body is functioning in terms ofTraditionar Chinese 
Medicine (TCM). Based on patient information I am able to determine, and customize, the specific points to use for each patient. We 
visit in a relaxing treatment room, discussing any health concerns the patient has. We focus on the main complaint that brought them in 
as well as any other areas of discomfort in regards to their health. We talk about the type (constant, intermittent, better at night or day, 
etc.) and quality (sharp, burning, tingling, aching, etc.) of pain or discomfort, how it affects daily living or sleep. and what makes it better 
or worse. After going over their health history, I explain to my patients what acupuncture is going to specifically do for their ailment. 
Often times, acupuncture is done while you are wearing your street clothes, just rolling up sleeves or pant legs and taking off shoes and 
socks. After the needles are inserted, the patient rests and relaxes with quiet music. Relaxation time is typically 20-30 minutes. A 
midday nap, quiet time for personal reflection, or just time for you away from work, kids/family is never a complaint anyone has about 
their acupuncture treatment. After needles are removed, one can go about the rest of the day with their normal daily activity level. 

With each new patient I stress how needles are handled and disposed of. They are sterile, single use needles that are the width 
of 2 human hairs. The skin is cleaned with isopropyl alcohol prior to receiving acupuncture. The needles are disposed into sharps 
containers as medical waste. They are NEVER reused. The approved acupuncture programs all have clean needle training as a part of 
the curriculum in order to enter student clinic, as well as graduate. In order to be nationally certified, one must receive Clean Needle 
Technique, or CNT, certification. The course is rigorous, with both theoretical and practical components. It includes lecture, 
demonstration, as well as written and practical examinations. This CNT coursework totals approximately 15-18 hours. 

Every day acupuncturists are exposed to blood borne pathogens. Knowing how to properly handle and dispose of needles is of 
utmost importance in the acupuncture profession. Forty-four states plus the District of Columbia, as well as on the national level, have 
standards and certifications that are already in place for those who meet the requirementS to r,eceive the title licensed acupuncturist, or 
L.Ac. The fact that there are currently no regulations in place for the state of North Dakota is extremely disconcerting to me and my 
colleagues, drawing on the issu.e of public protection. 

Please see the following page for the attachments to my testimony. Thank you for your time, it is greatly appreciated. 

Warmly, 

1~m. Dipl.Ac . 
(Masters of Science in Oriental Medicine, Diplomate of Acupuncture (NCCAOM}) 
Acupuncturist 



List of attachments - SB 2191 -Acupuncture Licensing Bill 

Adriane Maag's practitioner testimony attachments. 

6. Amaro, John. "What Conditions Does Acupuncture Treat (According to the World 

Health Organization)?". Acupuncture Today. October 2004. Vol 05 Issue 10. 

7. Tanya Boehland, patient testimony on using acupuncture for pain. 

8. Joy Navratil, patient testimony on the difference of receiving acupuncture from a 

master's degree-trained acupuncturist and a chiropractor. 

9. Brittany Petrick, student testimony on how she chose not to return to practice in ND 

·due to lack of licensure here. 

10. Alexandra Matthew's student testimony on the popularity of acupuncture and how 

she urges ND to provide acupuncture licensing. 

11. NCCAOM's list of states that license acupuncturists. 

http://mx.nccaom.org/Statelicensing.aspx 



• 

• 

• 

Acupuncture Today 
October, 2004, Vol.  OS, Issue 10 

What Conditions Does Acupuncture Treat (According to the World 
Health Organization)? 
B y  John Amaro, LAc, DC, Dip/. Ac. (NCCAOM), Dip/. Med. Ac. (IAMA) 

In contemporary a ppl ications of acupuncture in North America, it is becoming i ncreasingly common to hear patients 

compl a i n  that they a re being challenged by their insurance carrier with the comment that acupuncture is not effective 

for a particular situation, and therefore coverage is denied.  

Of course, it i s  obvious that i nsurance companies are i n  the business to minimize costs, and escalate productivity and 

profit. As a result, it is  not  u ncommon or u n l i kely that our patients wi l l  be denied coverage only because the insurance 
carrier has deemed acupuncture is not a n  effective or a pproved treatment. 

The World H ealth Org a n ization (WHO),  whose authority concerning health-related matters i nternationally cannot be 

challenged, has com pi led a l ist of symptoms, synd romes, d i sease processes, pathologies, tra umas and cond itions that 

h ave definitely been proven as effectively treated by acupuncture .  The WHO has also compiled a l ist of d i seases, 

symptoms and cond itions for wh ich acupuncture has shown definite therapeutic effects, but more proof is  needed to 

establ ish acupunctu re as a mainstream form of treatment. Should a curious patient, insura nce company or colleague 

req u i re proof of acupuncture's effectiveness, the following l ist is  someth ing you wil l  want to keep on fi le. Its use wi l l  

be inevitable. 

I n  a n  official report, Acupuncture : Review and Analysis of Reports on Controlled Clinical Trials, the WHO (WHO) has 

l i sted the following symptoms, d iseases and conditions that have been shown through controlled trials to be treated 

effectively by acupuncture : 

• low back pain • depression ( including d epressive neurosis 
• neck pain and depression following stroke) 
• sciatica • acute bacillary dysentery 

ten n i s  e lbow primary dysmenorrhea 

knee pain  acute epigastralgia 
• periarthritis of the shoulder • peptic ulcer 
• sprains • acute and chronic gastritis 

facia l  pa i n  ( i ncluding cra niomandibular 

d isorders) 

headache 
• dental  pain 

temproma ndibular (TMJ ) dysfunction 
• rheumatoid arthritis 

ind uction of labor 
• correction of malposition of fetus (breech 

presentation)  
• morn i n g  sickness 
• nausea and vomiti ng 
• postoperative pain 
• stroke 
• essential hypertension 
• primary hypotension 

renal col ic  
• leucopenia 
• adverse reactions to radiation or 

chemotherapy 
• al lergic rhin itis, including hay fever 
• bil iary colic 
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The foregoing l ist is absolute concerning acupuncture's effectiveness; however the report continues 

with three more categories: 

1 .  Diseases, symptoms and conditions for which the therapeutic effect of acupuncture has been 
shown, but further proof is needed (68 specific conditions) . These conditions are effectively 

treated as in the first category; it's just that m ore trials are necessary to establish the proof 
scientifically. 

2. Diseases, symptoms and conditions reporting some therapeutic effects for which acupuncture is 

worth trying (nine conditions). 
3 .  Diseases, symptoms a n d  conditions i n  which acupuncture may be tried, provided the practitioner 

has special modern medical knowledge and adequate monitoring equipment (eight conditions) . 
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To: Government and Veteran Affairs Committee 

From: Tanya Boehland 

Date: January 2 1 ,  20 1 5  

RE :  Testimony i n  support of SB 2 1 9 1  Acupuncture Licensure Bill 

Mister Chairman and Members of the Committee; 

My name is Tanya Boehland. I have lived in Fargo, ND since 1 995.  I am a North Dakota l icensed 

Reflexologist and have a full time practice in Fargo. I have found Acupuncture to greatly help me in 

several personal traumatic situations involving my hands. I will tell you about my first time. 

I was first introduced to Traditional Chinese Acupuncture for pain and trauma relief in 2010.  I had just 

spent two 1 1  hour days peeling sandbags off pallets to help create a seven foot tall - 1 00,000 unit 

sandbag dike in my neighborhood during the 20 1 0  spring flood. I sought out acupuncture treatment the 

next day for my crippled wrists that were spasming from sandbagging overuse. It was a very painful 

and frightening situation for me because I needed my hands to do my job, and function in general. After 

receiving just one acupuncture treatn;ient which included needle placements all over my body (not just 

my hands), I was nearly pain free, and had almost complete full range of motion return to each of my 

wrists. I was amazed at the dramatic results because just the year before - during the 2009 flood - I 

suffered the same wrist symptoms after a same intense neighborhood flood fight. I treated my wrists that 

year with advil, ice, massage, and chiropractic treatment. I did not have normal use of my hands for 

almost full two months following that traumatic 2009 ordeal. 

I dont know of any other therapy that could have helped me as effectively as Acupuncture proved to 

with my past hand injuries. In my opinion, nothing in Western-based medicine can duplicate the healing 

and health effects of Traditional Chinese Acupuncture. 

Thank you for your time. I can be reached at 701 -566.,.2904 for any questions. 

Most Sincerely, 

Tanya S. Boehland 

3327 46th Ave. S. 

Fargo, ND 5 8 1 04 
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CONCORDIA 
COLLEGE 

Global Learning 

To: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
From: Joy Navratil, Study Away Coordinator, Concordia College 
Re: Testimony in support of SS 2191 Acupuncture Licensure Blll 

Dear Government and Veterans Affairs Committee Members, 

I am a North D(Jkota resident writing In support of North Dakota · licensing Its acupuncturist ($8 219 l Acupuncture licensure 
8111). I have been doing acupuncture since 2007 for a variety of health concerns. I experienced insomnia for 
approximately 2 months and the first night I slept was after an acupuncture appointment. I hove noticed significant 
improvement in my health after to acupuncture treatments. Additionally, I enjoy the relaxing benefits of acupuncture. · 

I have seen three different it')dlviduals for acupuncture therapy. The first was a homeopathic physician who had .the proper 
acupuncture schooling and the 1hlrd earned her master's degree in .acupuncture. After seeing the homeopa1hlC i;ioctor for 
acupuricture in my home town I wanted to find someone in Fargo who I could see for a~puneture. At this ti~ I did not 
know there was a difference In the amount of acupuncture schooling/training that one completed cmd ended lip going to a 
chiropractor who did a~puncture. I sow no improvement for my health aliment$ by r~Mng <;icupunctul'~ tre(.ttmf;!nt from 
the chiropractor; Furffiermore, clur~ng treatment I didn't experience the relaxing effect that I experienced with lt'IY previous 
acupuncture provider. I wasso disappointed that I never went back and did some research to find a person that hod a 
master's degre~ in acupundure for treatment. That's when I found my current acupuncturist who received her master's 
degree in .acupuncture and have been going to her ever since. 

As someone who has visited .a chiropractor with the mini;num acupuncture training and.two others who have been properly 
educated ln acupuncture, I .know firsthand how Important it is to receive treatment from someQhe who know~ what they are 
doing. Acupuncturist professiQnals ~eeply core about their patients' health concerns ~nd want them to receive the best 
possible care by a trained professional and I think the state of North Dakota should honor that wish by licensfn~ 
acupuncturist who have a master's degree/homeopathic medicine degree. 

Please feel free to contact me for further questioning about my experience. 

-1"f t/:.v~ 
Joy Navratil · 
Study Awcsy Coordinator 
Concordia College 
Giobal learnirtg 
W: 218.299.3186 
C: 701.730.4002 
E: fnovrati@cord.edu 

Home Address1 
1 00 l 17th Street South 
Fargo, ND 58103 

901 8th St. S., Moorhead, MN 56562 
(218) 299-3927 • ConcordiaCollege.edu 



• TO: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
From: Brittany Petrick, RN, BSN 
1/16115 
Re: Testimony in support of SB 2191 Acupuncture Licensure Bill 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, 
I am writing in support to pass this bill so that North Dakota will license its 

acupuncturists. I am from Rocklake ND, grew up in North Dakota, and went to nursing 
school in Jamestown ND. I decided to further my healthcare education by going back to 
school for my Master's in Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine. I am currently attending 
Southwest Acupuncture College in Boulder CO, which is a four year Master's program 
consisting of 3,092.5 hours. 

I will graduate in 2016 and have chosen not to move back to North Dakota as it is 
a state that does not offer licensure for acupuncturists. I strongly urge you to pass this 
bill as it will have a positive impact on North Dakota and its citizens. This bill would 
ensure that practitioners are competent in their profession, making ethical decisions, 
and maintaining their competency through continuing education and recertification. All 
of this means safe and effective practice to protect the public. 

Thank you for your time, 

• ~;.fftiWf~ 
Brittany Petrick, RN, BSN 
Denver CO 
(701 )550-0089 

• 
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Io: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
From: Alexandra Matthews 
Date: January 16, 2015 
Re: Testimony in support of SB 2191 Acupuncture Licensure BiH 

\1r. Chairman and Members of the Committee. 

As a future health care professional, the licensure of acupuncture in the state of 
North Dakota is very important to my future career and success. In 2 0 1 2, I received m. 
B achelors of Science in Biology with an emphasis in health and medical sciences from 
Minnesota State U niversity-Moorhead. I also graduated with a minor in Anthropology. The 
ambitions of receiving my Masters Degree in Oriental medicine were set in place long 
before I graduated. l decided this was the best path for my education and future career for 
many reasons. There is a need for holistic medicine in the state of North Dakota. In other 
parts of the country, you can easily receive acupuncture treatments without having to travel 
long distances. I n  North Dakota, the practitioners are low in numbers. This makes it 
difficult for people that choose to use acupuncture for their diseases to receive proper 
treatment and care. · The popularity of acupuncture is on the rise in the Midwestern states. 
Along the coasts, it has already taken hold and is used in hospitals and other health care 
settings. I feel there is a large market for this type of work in the future in N orth Dakota. 
This would create more jobs and create a better health care experience for patients. 
Acupuncture works for a variety of symptoms and diseases. It can be used to treat the 
common cold or it can be used to treat the side effects caused by l ife saving medications for 
a person being treated for diabetes that is experiencing neuropathy. The positive outcomes 
from the use of acupuncture are endless and l'm excited to be a part of the movement. 

I was born and raised in the state of N orth Dakota. My family has owned smal 
businesses in the state dating all the way back to my Great Grandfather, Milo Matthews. I 
will be carrying on that "family tradition" by returning to the state to open an acupuncture 
clinic when I finish school. North Dakota is my home. I could not choose a better place to 
open a small business and start my career. Currently, 44 states provide licensure in the 
field of acupuncture. N orth Dakota is on of 6 states that does not. I am confident that this 
will soon change. I feel having licensure in the state is best for me and for my patients. It 
creates a level of protection for all parties involved in healthcare treatment and also will 
give a sense of comfort to the patients that I am licensed to complete a task that benefits 
their health. After 7 years of intense education, being able to receive a license in the state I 
will be practicing in will be very meaningful and well deserved. 

Thank you for your time, 

�;e,;•oo;;ws � 
etncif a.-r 

Masters of Acupuncture Student 
Northwestern Health Sciences 

Resident of Fargo, North Dakota 
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State licensing 

State Licensing Requirements List 

Although a majority of states require the NCCAOM examination or certification , each state regulatory board carries unique requirements for licensure. As a 

service to our Diplomates and cand idates, a table of requirements for each state can be viewed clicking the "View Website" link for each state. In addition, 

this table provides the contact list for each state regulatory agency. Although NCCAOM regularly updates the information contained in table, the 

NCCAOM does not guarantee the accuracy of the information. State rules and regulations are subject to change; therefore, you should always 

confirm current requirements for licensure with your state board. 
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Government and Affairs Committee 

Testimony in support of Senate Bi l l  21 91 - Acupuncture Licensing Bi l l  

Date 12  March 201 5 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, 

My name is Stephanie Beloh lavek-Geiger and I am a resident of Mandan . I 
served honorably in the United States Marine Corps and am currently a 
readjustment counselor for the Bismarck Vet Center where I counsel combat 
veterans and their fami l ies. I am also a Co-founder of the Dakota Sisterhood of 
Women Veterans. 

Due to my mi l itary service, I have been diagnosed with Post Traumatic Stress 

Disorder, which created secondary health symptoms such as anxiety, 

depression and insomnia among other health issues. Some of these other issues 
lead to surgery in 2008, which is when my Rheumatoid Arthritis (RA) began. 

Before Acu puncture I was using Methotrexate to control my RA where the side 

effects from the medicine were more debil itating to me than the effects of the 
d isease. My Rheumatologist told my husband and me that I would be in a wheel 

chair with in 6 months of my d iagnosis due to the severity of my RA. That was a 
tough d iagnosis to hear when you are a forty-one old mother of five. 

Prior to the onset of RA, I was working part time for the Bismarck Vet Center, a 
fu l l  t ime student at the Un iversity of Mary working on mv .Jndergraduate degree, 
and owned and operated a lawn care service. I was run i :rig and l ifting weights a 

min imum of five days a week, and loved to cook and garden for my husband 
and our chi ldren.  Needless to say, I was very active prior to RA entering my l ife. 

RA and the subsequent treatments left me too tired and stn r  to function with 
numerous swol len joints to the point where it was a physical and emotional 
struggle to get out of bed in the morning,  let alone go to work. It was 

increasingly difficult to focus or complete assigned schoolwork, to take care of 
my chi ldren, or to maintain any physical activity. Crocheting and running were 

my primary coping mechanisms I used when struggl ing with my PTSD 
symptoms and RA left me unable to do either. My l ife at this point was a 

day-to-day strugg le.  

Early on i n  my journey with RA, I was encouraged by a chiropractor to g ive 
acupuncture a try. Since my i l lness, I have an i ntense fear of needles and kept 

finding excuses not to make an appointment. Unfortunately for me that was a 

poor reason not try acupuncture. Because I was unwi l l i ng to try somethi ng new, 



• 

• 

• 

I was left with years of fighting a body that did not al low me to complete daily 

activities without help. 

My first treatment with acupuncture was in Apri l  of 201 2.  I was having a 

particularly intense flare that would not level off. My fingers were swol len to the 
point where I could not bend them and my wrists and ankles were severely 

affected. My wrists would not rotate and I could not walk without holding on to 

something.  Again the chiropractor encouraged me to try acupuncture, saying 

he had been research ing acupuncture and felt it could be beneficial for me. I 
finally cal led and made an appointment; one of the best decisions I have made 
concerning not only my fight with RA but for my overall wel l-being. 

After my first session, I remember getting in my vehicle and cal l ing my husband 
where I shared my experience with h im.  The inflammation in my hands was 

showing marked signs of reduced swell ing and noticeable increased mobil ity. I 
could not understand how a few placed needles could have that much impact 
after one treatment. 

To me, acupuncture is more of a total body form of therapy and helped my body 

as a whole not just with the RA, to i nclude some of my PTSD symptoms. After 

treatment to help with stress and anxiety, I was able to sleep more than a couple 

of hours at a time, which my body needed to help the heal ing process. With in a 

short time frame I was once again walking, slow jogging, able to do some l ight 

l ifting and even able to open doors which I hadn't been able to do for a number 
of years. 

In roughly a year I was no longer on the Methotrexate, my l iver enzymes were 
back to normal and I was in the process of regaining a semblance of my old l ife 

style. Acu puncture cannot rebui ld the joints that were damaged, but from my 
experience, acupuncture appears to be able to maintain the joints that are sti l l  

functional . The RA medication is so hard on a persons vital organs especially the 
heart and l iver, not to mention numerous other side effects. Acupuncture has 
given me an opportunity to experience activities I thought I would never be able 
to enjoy again. 

Stephan ie Belohlavek-Geiger MSW, LCSW 
Readjustment Counselor, Bismarck Vet Center 

Self employed -Lawn Service 

Co-Founder Dakota Sisterhood of Women Veterans 
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Warrior Clinic reduces pain medication 
use 

•

y2,20ll 

Joshua L. Wick 
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The pain management program.al the Walter Reed Army Medical Center W.Jrrior Clinic has drastically reduced the 
number of wounded warriors receiving prescribed pain medlcadon. 

WASHINGTON {Army News Service, April 29, 2011} -- The pain management program 
at the Walter Reed Army Medical Center Warrior Clinic has drastically reduced the 
number of wounded warriors receiving prescribed pain medication • 

• 

rough a combination of administering painkillers differently at the onset of Injury, 
emative pain treatment methods and increased oversight of prescribed painkillers, 
e percentage of Soldiers at the clinic using prescribed narcotics has dropped from 83 

percent In 2008, to just 10.2 percent in 2011. 

"It's a holistic, interdisciplinary, and multi-modal approach," said Dr. Christopher 
Spevak, an anesthesiologist and pain physician at the Warrior Clinic. "Pain management 
is not simply giving oploids." 

He explained that opiolds are a class of prescription narcotics that Include such drugs as 
morphine, codeine and oxycodone. 

According to Spevak, in the last couple of years research has shown that if doctors 
effectively treat pain at the onset, they can prevent the "rewiring" of the patient's brain 
and prevent chronic pain later on. Treating acute pain as close to the time of injury, 
with the appropriate medication, is just one part of this multidisciplinary approach. 

"There are many ways to treat pain initially; oploids are part of the whole pie," Spevak 
said. "We have regional techniques and we have gone forward right into the battlefield 
and placed regional catheters to infuse local anesthetics to numb the area." 

The Warrior Clinic has also devoted a significant amount of resources into looking at 
alternative methods for managing and minimizing pain . 

The alternative solutions include training sessions that can help Soldiers deal with pain 
in ways other than with medications. Included are options like acupuncture, chiropractic 
therapy, yoga and biofeedback. 

The dynamic and holistic approach to addressing and treating pain uses a wide variety 
of resources that look at the mind, body, and cognitive behaviors of the Soldier as well 
as incorporating and educating the Soldiers families Into the treatment and overall 
management of pain, officials said. 

Also part of the program is monitoring prescription use to make sure Soldiers are only 
getting the medications they need, and in the dosages they need, and only for as long 
as they need them. 

Elements of the policy include appropriate tracking and monitoring of Soldiers and ti1eir 
medications, controlling quantities, and prescribing the right medication at the right 
time . 
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